
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 

 Please reply to:  
 Contact: Fiona Connelly 
 Service: Committee Services 
 Direct Line: 01784 446224 
 E-mail: f.connelly@spelthorne.gov.uk 
 Date: 04 January 2023 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Economic Development Committee 
 
 
Date: 
 

Thursday, 12 January 2023 

Time: 
 

7.00 pm 

Place: 
 

Council Chamber, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames, TW18 1XB 

 
To the members of the Economic Development Committee 
 
Councillors: 
 
S.C. Mooney (Chairman) 
T. Fidler (Vice-Chairman) 
C. Bateson 
 

C.F. Barnard 
A. Brar 
J. Button 
 

A.C. Harman 
V.J. Leighton 
R.J. Noble 
 

 
Substitute Members: Councillors M. Beecher, J.T.F. Doran, N. Islam, L. E. Nichols, 

O. Rybinski, R.W. Sider BEM and B.B. Spoor 
 
Councillors are reminded that the Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book will be available 
outside the meeting room for you to record any gifts or hospitality offered to you since the last 
Committee meeting. 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 

 

Agenda 
 
 Page nos. 
 
1.   Apologies and Substitutes 

 
 

 To receive any apologies for absence and notification of substitutions. 
 

 

2.   Minutes 
 

5 - 10 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2022 as 
a correct record. 
 

 

3.   Disclosures of interests 
 

 

 To receive any disclosures of interest from Councillors in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members. 
 

 

4.   Questions from members of the Public 
 

 

 The Chair, or her nominee, to answer any questions raised by 
members of the public in accordance with Standing Order 40. 
 
At the time of publication of this agenda no questions had been 
received. 
 

 

5.   Ward Issues 
 

 

 To consider any issues raised by ward councillors in accordance with 
Standing Order 34.2 
 
At the time of publication of this agenda no ward issues had been 
received. 
 

 

6.   Economic Prosperity Strategy / Revised Town Centres and 
Shopping Parades Strategy 
 

11 - 84 

 To agree the Economic Prosperity Strategy and the revised Town 
Centres and Shopping Parades Strategy. 
 

 

7.   Additional Restrictions Grant Update 
 

85 - 94 

 To note the report on the Additional Restrictions Grant Update. 
 

 

8.   Youth Hub 
 

95 - 112 

 To note the report on the Youth Hub. 
 

 

9.   23/24 Budget 
 

113 - 122 

 To review the budget, the fees and charges, and growth bids for the  



 

Committee’s areas of responsibility. 
 

10.   Feedback on 23/24 Budget Setting Process - Economic 
Development 
 

 

 To provide feedback on this year’s budget setting process. 
 

 

11.   Forward Plan 
 

123 - 124 

 To consider the Forward Plan for committee business. 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Minutes of the Economic Development Committee 
29 September 2022 

 
 

Present: 

Councillor S.C. Mooney (Chairman) 
Councillor T. Fidler (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillors: 
 

C. Bateson 

C.F. Barnard 

J. Button 

V.J. Leighton 

  

 

 

Substitutions: Councillors M. Beecher (In place of R.J. Noble) 

 

Apologies: Councillors A. Brar 

 

32/22   Minutes  
 

The minutes of the meeting on 9 June were agreed as a correct record. 
 

33/22   Disclosures of interests  
 

Councillor Mooney declared that she was a councillor and a cabinet member 
of Surrey County Council. 
 

34/22   Questions from members of the Public  
 

There were none. 
 

35/22   Ward Issues  
 

There were none. 
 

36/22   BID Manager Verbal Update  
 

The Committee received a presentation from the Visit Staines Business 
Improvement Manager on the BID2 Business Plan April 2022 – March 2027. 
 
The Business Improvement Manager highlighted achievements from the last 
five years in relation to events, marketing, security and safety, attractiveness 
of the town centre and business support and set out  plans for the next five 
years.  These included purple flag status for safety in the town, training for 
BID rangers and security officers, an expanded number of events, particularly 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
Economic Development Committee, 29 September 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

in the summer, sponsorship of key events, such as Staines-upon-Thames 
day, and publicity for the town.  They would seek grants and funding, where 
available.  
 
The Committee resolved to note the presentation on the Staines BID2 
Business Plan for 1 April 2022 – 31 March 2027 and to invite the BID 
Manager to report to the Committee in six months’ time. 
 

37/22   Presentation from Heathrow Airport Limited on skills and 
employment post the COVID-19 pandemic  
 

The Committee received a presentation from the Education, Employment  and 
Skills Manager and the Local Authority and Business Engagement Lead at 
Heathrow Airport Limited (HAL) on skills’ development and employment 
assistance for local people following the Covid-19 pandemic.  HAL hosted an 
employment and skills academy, an employment brokerage facility, shared 
apprenticeship scheme and employability workshops.  It worked with local 
councils and employers at the airport.  Approximately 2,500 Spelthorne 
residents were employed at Heathrow. 
 
Looking forward, HAL wanted to encourage sustainable travel to the airport 
and acknowledged the lack of local public transport.  They offered a 
presentation on Refresh Heathrow 2.0 – HAL’s sustainability strategy.  The 
Committee advised that this might be more appropriate for the Environment 
and Sustainability Committee. 
 
The Committee suggested that HAL be invited to speak to the Environment 
and Sustainability Committee and requested a copy of the presentation to this 
meeting. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the presentation from Heathrow Airport 
Limited. 
 

38/22   Incubator - Monitoring  
 

The Committee received a report on the SBC Business Incubator situated at 
Hanworth Road, Sunbury-on-Thames.  The owner of Co-Tribe, the company 
running the Business Incubator, attended to answer questions.  The 
Committee noted that not all of the KPIs had been achieved, largely due to 
Covid-19 and renovations to the building which had affected lettings.   
 
The Committee noted a more positive outlook now that the building was fully 
operational.  Marketing had commenced and the current position showed 
most of the offices had been let and several customers were renting hot 
desks.  The concept was not-for-profit and for the centre to aid the growth of 
small businesses in the community by providing additional evening sessions, 
one-to-one business support and networking events. 
 

Page 6



 
Economic Development Committee, 29 September 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

The Committee noted a funding commitment from Shepperton Studios for the 
next five years. 
 
Alternative options considered and not agreed were inviting the Economic 
Development Team or another company to run the centre. 
 
Councillors were invited to visit the Business Incubator. 
 
The Committee resolved to agree the preferred option to maintain the current 
arrangement, and review again at the Committee Meeting to be held on 15 
June 2023 (provisional date). 
 

39/22   Draft Economic Prosperity Strategy  
 

The Committee received a report from the Economic Development Manager 
and Senior Economic Development Officer on a draft economic prosperity 
strategy for 2023-2028.  This document contained a detailed action plan.  Also 
attached was the SBC Local Economic Assessment for 2021. 
 
The 2023-2028 strategy referred to recent and anticipated challenges, such 
as Bexit, Covid-19, inflation and the current energy crisis, and stressed the 
importance of Spelthorne’s preparation for those areas over which it had 
control.  It was an evidence-based assessment of the local economy.  The 
Committee noted that no other local council produced such a detailed plan. 
 
There was discussion of working with other local authorities and Surrey and 
whether this directly benefited businesses and residents in Spelthorne.  The 
Spelthorne Business Forum would be invited to assist.  The Committee made 
suggestions for improvements to the strategy, including whether the £5,000 
current spending limit for budget holders, intended for use with local suppliers 
could be increased to £10,000.    
 
The Committee thanked the Economic Development Manager who was 
retiring at the end of the year.  The Committee noted the strategy had been 
designed with existing resources.  If resource levels changed within the 
Economic Development team re-prioritisation of objectives might be required. 
 
It was agreed that the Chair and the Economic Development Manager would 
write to Surrey County Council to seek information on plans to improve 
educational attainment and qualifications in the Borough. 
 
The Committee resolved agree that a draft economic prosperity strategy was 
required, and that a final version of the strategy should come back to 
Committee on 12 January 2023. 
 

40/22   Draft Town Centres Strategy  
 

The Committee received a draft town centres’ strategy report and action plan 
from the Town Centres Manager.  The town centres of Ashford, Shepperton 

Page 7



 
Economic Development Committee, 29 September 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

and Sunbury and the shopping parades in the Borough had emerged from the 
pandemic healthier than expected.  The report set out small scale, active 
interventions designed to benefit these retailers and noted that survivability 
was based on sustainability.  The Committee noted increasing engagement 
between retailers, small businesses and the Council. 
 
The Council noted that long term road closures due to work on the 
replacement Southampton - London oil pipeline in Ashford had had a negative 
impact on the businesses there.  The Council was liaising with businesses in 
order to keep them updated and mitigate issues, where possible. 
 
The Committee suggested improvements to the draft town centres’ strategy.  
The Committee agreed changes in relation to parking with a view to revising 
the action on car parking charges at some of the local shopping centres. 
 
The Committee resolved to agree the report, subject to the changes 
discussed at the meeting. 
 

41/22   Revenue Monitoring Report (Qtr 1 April-June)  
 

The Committee received the quarter 1 revenue monitoring report relating to 
economic development as at 30 June 2022 from the Chief Accountant. 
 
This report had previously been discussed at the Corporate Policy and 
Resources Committee in September.  The Chief Accountant highlighted the 
projected £96,000 overspend on revenue expenditure against budget.  
Income from Staines Market was forecast to be lower than projected due to a 
slower than expected recovery post Covid-19. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the £96,000 projected overspend as set out 
in the quarter 1 revenue monitoring report for the Economic Development 
Committee against its budget as at 30 June 2022. 
 

42/22   Surrey Delivery Board - Economic Development Stream  
 

The Committee received a report on the Surrey Delivery Board in relation to 
economic development activites from the Group Head Regeneration and 
Growth.  Whilst monitoring activities of the Surrey Delivery Board fell within 
the remit of the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee (CPRC) an 
update relevant to Economic Development had been requested.  This 
information had previously been reported to CPRC in September.   
 
The report set out opportunities for aligning economic development across 
Surrey by collaborating with other local authorities. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the progress which had been made to date 
on collaboration and partnership working between districts and boroughs and 
Surrey County Council and the next steps as outlined in the report. 
 

Page 8



 
Economic Development Committee, 29 September 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

43/22   Forward Plan  
 

The Committee considered the forward plan for future committee business. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the forward plan and to add the following 
items to the forward plan: 
 

 Economic Prosperity Strategy: 12 January 2023 

 Review of Staines BID: 15 June 2023 

 Incubator monitoring: 15 June 2023 
 
The Committee resolved to note the forward plan for future committee 
business. 
 

44/22   Exclusion of Public and Press  
 

It was proposed by Councillor Fidler, seconded by Councillor Barnard, and 
resolved that the public and press be excluded during consideration of the 
following item, in accordance with paragraph 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of 
the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

45/22   Exempt Report - Service Plan (as part of the 23/24 Budget 
Process)  
 

The Group Head Regeneration and Growth presented the Service Plan for 
Economic Development to the Committee. 
 
Members were invited to ask questions and provide feedback on the service 
plan. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the Service Plan for Economic 
Development. 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

Economic Development Committee  

 

Date of meeting 12.01.2023 

 

1. Summary of the report 

1.1 This report seeks to follow on from the previous Committee meeting in 
September 2022 when a draft Economic Prosperity Strategy (EPS) was 
discussed.  The purpose of the Strategy is to secure sustained economic 
growth for the benefit of businesses and the community whilst protecting and 
enhancing the borough’s environment and character.  Details of this are 
outlined within the Action Plan contained with the Economic Prosperity 
Strategy for 2023 – 2028.  Minutes of the previous meeting in September 
2022 http://sbclocalgov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=298&MId=3874&Ver=4  

2. Key issues 

2.1 There are no key issues as 99% of the EPS report was agreed at the 
September Committee meeting. Several minor issues were raised (1) 
educational attainment levels compared to other boroughs and districts (2) 
whether closer working with other authorities and Surrey would benefit our 
businesses (2) increasing local procurement. 

Title Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 – 2028 

Town Centres Strategy 2023  

Purpose of the report To make a decision 

Report Author Tracey Carter Senior Economic Development Officer 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Exempt No 

Exemption Reason N/A 

Corporate Priority Community 

Recovery 

Environment 

Service delivery 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

Agree the Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 – 2028 (Appendix 
A) 
Agree revised Town Centres and Shopping Parades Strategy 
2023 (Appendix B) 
 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

The previous strategy expired in 2022, it is important that a 
strategic approach is taken to safeguard the economic well-being 
of the borough from 2023 – 2028. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

http://sbclocalgov/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=298&MId=3874&Ver=4


 
 

2.2 On the first matter, the ED Manager contacted colleagues and councillors at 
Surrey to get some more statistical information on the situation – which has 
been provided. It was agreed that there was a need for closer engagement 
moving forwards (as per the action on the EPS). Separately the strategic 
Planning Manager has confirmed that the emerging Local Plan has a 
proposed allocation for a new sixth form college in the borough which will 
hopefully assist in addressing the lack of diversity in further education 
provision.     

2.3 In terms of whether closer working will benefit our businesses, as a borough 
we are ensuring that the EPS is bespoke to the needs of our businesses and 
based on evidence which is unique to us. However, there are some areas of 
commonality with our nearest neighbours and in those cases it makes sense 
to work together to make best use of limited resources (and because 
businesses do not necessarily ‘see’ local authority borders).   

2.4 The third issue is covered in section 6 below. 

3. Options analysis and proposal 

Option one 

3.1 The principle of the adoption of an Economic Prosperity Strategy has already 
been agreed, so there are two options available. 

3.2 Option one is to accept the EPS as presented to the meeting and agree for it 
to be adopted and implemented over the next 5 years. This is the 
recommended option. 

3.3 Option two is to send the EPS back to officers for further amendments. 

4. Financial implications 

4.1 This was covered in the September report and is repeated here.  The 
Economic Development Team budget outside of salaries is very limited with 
just £32,000 to deliver the Strategy.  However, there is also the Business 
Rates Retention Fund available which is currently used to support the 
incubator and pay salaries for two of the officers within the Economic 
Development Team.  The total amount left in this fund is around £600k.  It is 
ring-fenced to economic development activities and is available to use in 
economic related projects and support and continue to pay for two members 
of staff (to ensure the effective delivery of the strategy).  Most of the actions 
contained within the strategy do not require finance for them to go ahead.  A 
few projects that are delivered are paid for through donations from business.  
This includes the Spelthorne Business Awards and smaller events such as 
the Riverboat Trip for businesses. 

5. Risk considerations 

5.1 No issues raised by the Audit Team. 

6. Legal considerations 

6.1 No issues raised by the Legal Team.  The Strategy is not a statutory 
requirement. 

6.2 At the September meeting, the committee had asked whether it was feasible 
to increase the local suppliers spending limit for local suppliers from £5,000 to 
£10,000. Below is an extract form a procurement report which went to the 
Administrative Committee in October 2022.  

Page 12



 
 

6.3 “As changes to Contract Standing Orders are not planned for the foreseeable 
future, it has not been possible to implement a request (from the 
Administrative Committee in October 2021) to consider increasing the 
threshold from £5k to £10k for all local procurements. However, the Corporate 
Procurement and Economic Development teams are monitoring performance 
against this measure. The latest measure (for the last financial year) indicates 
that this is currently 20.5% of our spend.” 

7. Other considerations 

7.1 This strategy needs to be seen in the wider context of the opportunities that 
exist for greater collaborative working with other Councils.  As members of 
this committee will be aware, part of the work of the Surrey Delivery Board 
has been to consider options for working more closely between Surrey and 
other districts and boroughs to pool expertise and make most of the skills 
available across the county.  Economic development teams across the county 
have been looking at ways to ensure organisations work at the most effective 
level, deliver what they do best and ensure the right outcomes for our 
businesses. 

7.2 As a result, a potential cluster of five local authorities in northwest Surrey has 
been identified (Spelthorne, Runnymede, Elmbridge, Woking and Surrey 
Heath).  A number of initial joint actions have already been included within the 
strategy, and future opportunities will be developed and delivered as and 
when the need arises.  However, where there are actions that are unique to 
this borough and its needs, then these have been recognised within the 
Action Plan contained within the strategy. 

8. Equality and Diversity 

8.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed. 

9. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

9.1 A number of actions contained within the strategy specifically support a 
greener economy and reduction of CO2 emissions, particularly within A5 in 
the Action Plan.  The Economic Development Team have liaised very closely 
with the Sustainability Team throughout the development of this Strategy to 
ensure this, and the Climate Change Strategy which is being considered by 
the Environment and Sustainability Committee in September are fully aligned 
and look to achieve the same outcomes.   

10. Timetable for implementation 

10.1 Upon adoption by the Economic Development Committee, the EPS will 
become live on 12th January 2023. 

11. Contact 

11.1 Tracey Carter t.carter@spelthorne.gov.uk  

 
Background papers:  
There are none. 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A:  Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 – 2028 
Appendix B:  Town Centres and Shopping Parades Strategy 2023 

Page 13

mailto:t.carter@spelthorne.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



@spelthornebc

@spelthornebc

@spelthorneboroughcouncil

www.spelthorne.gov.uk

Economic Prosperity 
Strategy 2023 - 2028

Spelthorne Borough Council’s

Published: September 2022Page 15



Contents

1 Foreword 3

 Some of the achievements 4

2 Introduction 6

3 Vision for the Spelthorne Economy 7

 Community 7

 Supporting Business 7

 Improving transport and infrastructure 7

4 Implementing the Vision 9

5 Action Plan 2023 – 2028 10-38

6 The Spelthorne Economy 39

 Background 39

 Locational Context 40

 Scale and nature of business activity 41

 Economic Performance 41

 Employment and the labour market 42

 Heathrow 43

7 Strengths and Weaknesses 44

8 Monitoring and Review 46-49

9 Spelthorne under Development 2017-2022 50-52

10 Further information 53

Page 16



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

3

Cllr Sinead Mooney

The Spelthorne Economic Strategy builds upon the 2017-2022 Economic Strategy 
and continues to focus on prioritising the key needs for business to settle, grow 
and thrive. Through the strategy the Borough aims to realise its ambitions and 
release its potential as a leading economy not just in Surrey but the wider sub-
region. The strategy has been produced at a time when the local, national and 

international economies are all taking stock and preparing for the future with regards to the 
impact of significant events and decisions such as Heathrow’s potential third runway, climate 
change implications, southern rail access to Heathrow, adjusting to the impact of Brexit, the 
Covid-19 pandemic which had a massive social and economic impact on the whole world and of 
course the highest levels of inflation seen in the UK for 40 years with inflation at 10.1%1. 

In November 2017 the government launched an Industrial Strategy designed to strengthen the 
five foundations of productivity: ideas, people, infrastructure, business environment and places. 
This strategy recognises those ambitions and are referenced within this refreshed strategy. 
The health of the Spelthorne economy has shown remarkable growth over a number of years, 
as evidenced by our position as 42nd out of 379 local authorities, putting the Borough in the 
top 11% of local authorities in the UK for competitiveness2 in 2021. Spelthorne possesses the 
foundations envied by other locations, particularly given its proximity to London and Heathrow, 
forming part of a powerfully functional economic area; the M3, M4 and M25 which help drive 
the prosperity of the southeast all run through or in close proximity to Spelthorne. The area 
also contains some beautiful attractions such as Staines Moor, 11 miles of the river Thames 
and much more. Members and Officers of the Council are united in working hard to ensure 
that economic growth and the associated benefits to our community continue to grow and 
Spelthorne can compete with the best.

We are already witnessing significant developments in the Borough over the last 5 years of the 
strategy, particularly in Staines-upon-Thames where over the course of this strategy we have 
already seen a new hotel, residential accommodation and additional retail space. The face of 
Ashford has also changed with the development of the old Brooklands College site into hundreds 
of new apartments. This will further add to the attraction of the Borough to those who wish to 
locate their business or indeed, live, work or shop in Spelthorne. 

The above has contributed towards strengthening the Spelthorne economy, moving it from 59th 
place in 20193 to 42nd place in the UK Competitive index 2021 putting it in the top 11% of 379 
local authority areas. This is against a backdrop of the Covid pandemic which had a profound 
impact on trading and jobs here, across the UK and the whole world.

Spelthorne will continue to strive to continue to be the location where businesses are supported, 
nourished and encouraged to become the best they can be. Spelthorne Council is determined to 
do all it can do to ensure that this is the best place for businesses to locate, grow and thrive.

Cllr. S. Mooney
1 https://www.ft.com/content/2fb6f361-a7bb-4b98-8100-6847b5df79b4

2 http://cforic.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/UKCI-2021.pdf 

3 https://orca.cardiff.ac.uk/id/eprint/120234/1/R%20Huggins%202019%20UK%20competitive%20index%20report%20March2019.pdf

To secure sustained growth of the local economy for the 
benefit of businesses and residents whilst protecting the 
Borough’s environment and character.

1 Foreword

Page 17



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

4

Some of the achievements 

During the course of the pandemic over the last 2 years, a number of events and actions have 
not been carried out due to restrictions and the need to allocate resources in supporting the 
delivery of Additional Restriction Grants to our businesses.

However, below is a summary of a number of activities designed to support businesses that 
were delivered.

Support was provided for MP Kwasi Kwarteng’s Business Plan Competition held in 2017, 2018, 
2019 and 2022 at BP, an Export Event held in conjunction with Department for International 
Trade and Runnymede and Elmbridge councils for businesses. A Skills & Jobs Fair held at 
Kempton Park over the same period with over 2,000 attendees / the first Spelthorne Business 
Awards event was held in 2018 and subsequently in 2019 and 2021. Place shaping with £1b 
worth of acquisitions by Spelthorne Council situated in and out of the Borough which has 
generated around £10m to supplement the Council’s budget to deliver services. The publication 
of a Spelthorne ‘Start Your Own Business’ book for new and potential entrepreneurs was 
produced in 2018 and a new edition in 2022. The Spelthorne Business Forum has grown from 
500 to 900 members, the team helped to initiate a coding club at a local school. A seminar 
for businesses on cyber-crime, GDPR and business resilience was delivered in 2019. We have 
also held 4 extremely successful ‘Capture Spelthorne’ photographic competitions which has 
produced some fabulous pictures of the Borough. Royal Holloway University have carried out an 
in-depth investigation in support of an Oyster card for Spelthorne.

During the pandemic SBC distributed government grants or business rates reductions to the 
value of more than £50m to businesses situated in the borough. The Economic Development 
Team working with Councillors from the Economic Development Committee have distributed 
just over £3m of this through a variety of means, including cash grants, equipment grants, shop 
front grants, free professional business coaching, free training on ‘Social Media for Businesses’, 
free membership of the Federation of Small Businesses, free websites, and advice on how to 
reduce business costs.

Spelthorne Council’s work supporting the Borough’s businesses was honoured at the Federation 
of Small Businesses (FSB) Local Government Awards in October 2022, Having been selected as 
one of the top 3 entries for each of the four awards available, was named the All-England winner 
of the Future Ready category, the best in the southeast in the All Round Small Business Friendly 
category and best in the southeast winner in the Future Ready category.

The Future Ready award related to any activity to support and enable businesses to be prepared 
for the changing business landscape, to mitigate challenges or exploit opportunities in the future. 

Page 18



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

5

The all-round small business category related to projects which have positively succeeded in 
supporting and developing the local small business community.

Ray Abrahams, Development Manager for the FSB in Surrey, said: “I’d like to congratulate 
Spelthorne on being named the All-England winner in the Future-Ready category and the 
Southeast regional winner in the All-Round business support category at the FSB Awards, as 
well as being shortlisted in the Covid support & Recovery and Programme of Business Support 
categories. The team at Spelthorne have worked incredibly hard over the past 12 months to 
support local businesses and can take pride in their efforts in the knowledge that their work is 
recognised alongside the best in the country. I look forward to seeing the next steps they take in 
supporting businesses.”

Some feedback from local businesses:

“I’ve been doubly blessed by Spelthorne, having received both a grant for some new audio 
equipment for my studio and now for the creation of a new website. The former has already 
really helped my voiceover business and I’m sure the latter will too, once it’s complete. I’ve 
told a number of people about the way you’ve supported me, and how Spelthorne really does 
have a passion for helping small businesses. Everyone’s reaction has been much the same: 1, 
they can’t believe it and 2, they wish their local borough had the same outlook! I expect that 
both your roles are probably rather thankless at times, so I just want to say... thank you.”

“I would love to have a stall at your event and tell people how much help I received to get my 
small business running. I first started through the business enterprise scheme while on income 
support and have since received an equipment grant to buy my mobile massage van. I started 
from nothing and despite covid am still doing well and growing. I would love the opportunity to 
give something back to you for all your help and ongoing support, of which I am very thankful. 
If you would like to see what I do, I have nearly forty 5* reviews from the people I have helped 
in our community.”

“We just wanted to drop you a message to say a massive thank you to you and your team 
for helping us. Whilst we still face many challenges with costs, we have now at least the 
opportunity to follow our road map to becoming a successful business. Our goal to fly the 
green flag and promote healthy living is very much alive which would not have been the case 
without the help of Economic Development Team.”

“We started off in Christ Church where we shared the kitchen, the church were extremely kind 
to us but we knew we had to move on and have our very own kitchen to grow. We managed 
to obtain loans to purchase our new kitchen but then hit a financial wall when it came to 
purchasing equipment and at that point the business would have been dead without the 
support of your team. Your whole team were magnificent and always incredibly helpful.”

Page 19



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

6

2.1.   Spelthorne has an excellent location 
immediately to the south of Heathrow and 
adjacent to the economically buoyant area to the 
west of London. The Borough has exceptional 
communication links, a substantial business 
base with many successful international 
businesses and a strong economy. 

2.2. The UK left the EU on 31st 
December 2020. It is too early to 

say how this will affect the UK 
economy in the long 
term. Since leaving the 

EU the delay in goods 
held at borders is 
causing concern 

with companies 
moving from 
sea to air to 
transport the 
goods which 
provides some 

benefit for 
Heathrow Airport. 

There is also concern 
about the number of people 

available for employment 
with high levels of vacancies 

available, particularly in hospitality, 
retail, and farming sectors (October 

2021). The impact of leaving the EU 
has also been clouded due to the effect of the 

Covid pandemic on the economy.

2.3. This Economic Strategy was adopted by Spelthorne Council on (date) January 2023, and 
it sets out the actions the Council will be taking over the next 5 years to further secure 
the sustainable growth of the local economy. This strategy builds upon the 2021 - 2023 
Spelthorne Council Corporate Plan4 which identifies 5 key priorities including Community, 
Affordable Housing, Recovery, Environment, Service Delivery (C.A.R.E.S).

2.4. These actions have been developed following consultation with businesses, during July to 
September 2021. It is critical to this strategy that it is informed by local businesses so that 
it reflects real needs. Items raised that are included in the strategy include more emphasis 
on the provision of affordable office space, reducing congestion on our roads. Many of the 
objectives will be longer term, but this strategy will be reviewed and then refreshed at its 
halfway point. The governance structure to ensure that this strategy will be delivered is 
through the Economic Development Committee. 

2.5. Much of this work will be in partnership with other organisations. Together, we will build 
on the strengths of the economy as well as tackle any barriers that inhibit a stronger 
Spelthorne.

4 file://sbcfr/userfolders$/kmcgro/Documents/Downloads/Corporate_Plan_2021-23.pdf

2 Introduction

M25

M3

A308

M25

M3

A308

ELMSLEIGH
SHOPPING CENTRE

Staines-
upon-Thames

Page 20



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

7

3.1. The Council’s objective in the previous strategy and continued in this strategy, is to secure 
sustained economic growth. It also recognises that the environment and character of the 
Borough is important in attracting many businesses, and residents rightly see its protection 
to be of great importance. The vision of this strategy is therefore: 

3.2. In pursuing this vision, we will address the strengths and weaknesses previously described 
within the economic assessment and build on the positive growth prospects revealed in its 
latest business survey. In particular it will seek to increase the number of businesses in the 
Borough, to retain existing businesses and their level of business activity, as well as growth 
in the proportion of residents in work and their income levels. 

3.3. This strategy does not seek to take the credit or indeed blame for changes that take place 
with regards to unemployment or business numbers, as there are many local, national and 
international factors at work; however, the strategy is intended to strengthen our ability 
to influence those areas at a local level and give the borough the best possible chance 
of improving the overall economic outlook for Spelthorne. Using the resources, we have 
access to, we will provide the help, support or the nudge necessary to enable a more 
prosperous and attractive Spelthorne to develop and thrive.

• This strategy recognises the 5 foundations of the National Industrial Strategy5 (ideas, 
people, infrastructure, business environment and places), these have been captured 
within the 4 areas in bold listed below and will seek to compliment the updated 2018 – 
30 Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) of EM3 which takes account of the implications of the 
Industrial Strategy as well as the Surrey County Council - Forward To 2030: Our Economic 
Strategy Statement. Activities to achieve the below ambitions are included within the Action 
Plan 

• Growth and Competitiveness - Spelthorne to become a stronger economy through a 
range of initiatives including access to training and business coaching

• People - More quality jobs and greater earning power as well as enhanced access to skills 
via the Apprenticeship Levy gifted to small businesses.

• Infrastructure and Places - To complete and deliver the Local Plan and Staines 
Development Framework to make best use of our assets including Bridge Street carpark, 
Thameside House and Ashford multistory carpark.

• Supporting Business - To provide one of the best mechanisms of business support 
in Surrey via the Economic Development Team and the best place to start and grow a 
business

5  https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/the-uks-industrial-strategy 

3 Vision for the Spelthorne Economy

To secure sustained growth of the local economy 
for the benefit of businesses and residents whilst 
protecting the Borough’s environment and character.

Page 21



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

8

3.4. The Industrial Strategy also includes 4 Grand Challenges that focus on global trends which 
will transform our future. These challenges will also be addressed in the strategy through 
the action plan.

• Growing the Artificial Intelligence and data driven economy - We will take steps to 
help enable access for businesses and residents to internet speeds up to 1Gbps. We will 
explore the demand for 5G within the borough and help to prepare Spelthorne for future 
products and services known as The Internet of Things (IOT).

• Clean growth - We will provide guidance and support for businesses to reduce their 
energy consumption and adopt more environmentally friendly solutions, and seize 
opportunities where the environment can be improved via grants or new ways of working.

• Future of mobility - We will encourage the installation of more electric charging points 
across the Borough which will help give confidence to businesses and residents to invest in 
electric cars.

• Ageing society - We will support education for the elderly with I.T skills so they are not left 
behind advances in technology and the opportunities that the internet offers.

We will also support over 50 job clubs to help older people back into employment.

Page 22



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

9

4.1. Four ‘theme’ areas emerge from the Council’s assessment of the economy and the ‘actions’ 
under each ‘theme’ will help to implement the ‘vision’. The ‘themes’ are: -

• Growth and Competitiveness

• People 

• Supporting Business 

• Infrastructure and Places

4.2. The Action Plan reflects initiatives carried over from the previous strategy, uncompleted 
actions from the Economic Recovery Plan and new proposals. They include short term 
quick wins and one-off initiatives, as well as on-going/longer term work necessary to 
sustain a continuous process of attracting and growing new businesses. Some actions 
involve further investigation. For each ‘action’ specific details are provided about the 
implementation, timescale, outcome, and the lead committee/task group/senior officer. 

4 Implementing the Vision

Page 23



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

10

Some of the Achievements 
2017-2022

Ideas

A1 Create new resource for Key Account 
Management and Inward Investment 
In 2019 training was secured from the 
Department for International Trade (DIT).

We will refresh and regularly maintain the 
dedicated Invest in Staines-upon-Thames 
website that supports and promotes 
inward investment for the Borough.  
The new website was launched in June 2022 
and branded ‘Choose Spelthorne’  
https://choosespelthorne.com/

Face-to-face meetings have taken place with 
a company that has expressed an interest in 
building a Super-Hub for charging electric vans 
and goods vehicles. These are currently on-
going including discussions with Highways 
England.

A2 Measures to support each of our 
towns: There has been attendance on at least 
2 occasions during 2018 and 2019 at Ashford 
Wide and Lower Sunbury Business community 
business groups. A SWOT (Strengths, 
Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats) analysis 
has been carried out in Ashford, Sunbury 
and Shepperton. The findings informed 
future actions which included the successful 
recruitment of a Town Centre Manager for 
Sunbury, Ashford and Shepperton; this has 
been expanded to include shopping parades 
within the borough. 

A Digital Skills for Businesses training course 
has been held on 3 occasions over four 
sessions, each one lasting for 2 hours. This 
was initially provided for Ashford retailers to 
provide support at a time when Church Road, 
the main thoroughfare was blocked off due to 
sewage works for a new housing development 
which was badly affecting trade. Further 
courses have been held in the Business 

Incubator during 2021. On each occasion 
there have been 15 businesses present and 
the feedback has been outstanding. This has 
enabled many of our small businesses to raise 
their visibility and increase their customer 
base. Some have made a direct link with the 
course and increase in profits.

A3 - Introduce a Customer Relations 
Management System – In collaboration with 
EM3, Surrey and Hampshire County Councils 
have purchased and procured a new CRM 
system.

A4 - Incubator – The business incubator was 
formally opened by the Mayor in June 2021 
with tenants arriving in September. The office 
area was converted into 8 offices, 6 of which 
are currently occupied. We are now working 
on attracting hot-desk businesses to the 
incubator; these are usually early start-ups in 
need of cheap accommodation and support.

We will help support and deliver the 
Annual Business Plan Competition 
in conjunction with the office of our MP 
Kwasi Kwarteng which encourages new 
entrepreneurs. SBC have participated in the 
organisation of this every year it has been ran 
since its inception with the exception of the 
pandemic in 2020-21.

Produce a Spelthorne ‘How to Start Your 
Own Business’ book. This was completed 
in 2018 and has been distributed to many 
local budding and existing entrepreneurs. A 
refreshed second edition was published in 
2022.

A6 - Proactively work with developers: 
London Square is largely completed, and 
which now has a significant number of people 
in occupation. Further, work is well under way 
to construct a number of apartment buildings 
by Berkley Homes at the old British Gas site 
near the Crooked Billet, a site which has been 
boarded up for more than 15 years. Also a 
Premier Inn hotel has been constructed in 
Staines-upon-Thames. In Ashford apartments 
have been constructed on the old Brooklands 

5 2023 - 2028 Economic Prosperity Strategy

Page 24



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

11

College site which has helped breath life 
into the town centre with around 400+ new 
residents on the doorstep.
A9 - Place-shaping: Spelthorne Council 
committed to a policy of borrowing funding 
at very low rates of interest and purchasing 
acquisitions that will provide future revenue 
returns to enable the council to continue 
delivering high quality services for the 
community. Due diligence has been taken with 
all acquisitions thus reducing the risk against 
the investment. 

In addition to creating a revenue, the council 
acquired The Bugle Public House, Harper 
House and Benwell House to convert to 
housing in order to provide accommodation to 
help deal with homelessness and also provide 
rented accommodation for our residents. 

The White House (situated next to the Council 
Depot in Staines) was demolished and a new 
building which opened in September 2021 
with 27 en-suite rooms with shared kitchens, 
four studio flats and outside space that will 
provide emergency accommodation for single 
homeless people with complex needs.

Property

The Bugle Public House Feb-16

Harper House May-16

BP main site Sep-16

BP other site Dec-16

Elmbrook House Jan-17

Stockley Park Aug-17

World Business Centre Sep-17

Benwell House Sep-17

Hanover House Oct-17

Hammersmith Grove Dec 17

The White House Oct-17

Station Road 17 Mar-18

Thameside House May-18

Communications House Jul-18

Thames Tower Aug-18

Porter Building Aug-18

Charter Building Aug-18

Ashford Hospital Car Park Jan-19

42 Kingston Road Mar-19

Summit Centre Sep-19

Oast House Oct-19

Elmsleigh Shopping Centre Feb-20

Page 25



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

12

Community

A13 Apprenticeships – SBC currently have 
21 apprentices; 3 are in apprentice roles 
and the other 18 existing staff. A total of 30 
apprenticeships have been funded by the Levy 
since it started in 2017. As a public sector 
organisation there is a target to employ an 
average of 2.3% of staff as new apprentice 
starts over the period of 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2021. In 2021 /22 the SBC figure was 
3.35%.

A19 CSR from Businesses in the Borough: 
During 2018 and 2019 financial year almost 
£55k was generated from business to good 
causes directly via the work of the Economic 
Development Team.

A21 Improve skills – Skills & Jobs Fair held 
at Kempton Park in September 2018 and 
on September 2019 with 50+ organisations 
taking stands with around 600 jobseekers and 
schoolchildren attending. 2020 and 2021 did 
not take place due to Covid-19 restrictions.
Two Jobs Fairs were also held in the Elmsleigh 
Centre in 2018 and 2019 in partnership with 
A2 Dominion Housing Association.

Supporting Business

A23 Support the Spelthorne Business 
Forum: Membership of the Forum has risen 
from 584 in 2017 to 900+ in December 2021. 
In 2019 the sbf registered as a community 
interest company (CIC). Work is also ongoing 
to review and revise the business model in 
order to generate funds and enhance the 
services offered.

A24 Improve information on Council 
contracts for local businesses: 
Presentations have been made to all SBC 
managers that hold a budget to encourage 
a local spend where possible. A further 
presentation was made at staff meetings. 
Working with the Procurement Team, Contract 
Standing Orders were amended in 2021 to 

state that all items under the value of £5,000 
must be purchased in Spelthorne if available 
(subject to best value considerations), if 
purchased outside of the Borough, authority 
from a senior manager is required. 

A25 Champion businesses, highlight 
best practice and best businesses in the 
Borough Spelthorne Means Business 
Awards: This was launched on 9th February 
and the final took place at Shepperton Studios 
on 11th October 2018. The second event 
took place on 17th October 2019, and the 
third event took place at The Holiday Inn, 
Shepperton in 2021 with over 200 people in 
attendance.

Page 26



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

13

Improving transport and 
infrastructure

A26 Investigate Business sectors where 
there appears room for growth – We have 
published a Visitor Economy Strategy and 
created a Visitor Economy Forum. SBC have 
purchased the Oast House in Staines-upon-
Thames with a potential option of converting 
part of the building into a community space 
including a small theatre; the lack of provision 
of a wider entertainment offer in Staines is 
something that needs to be addressed. 

A32 Initiatives to reduce congestion 
– A Staines-upon-Thames Development 
Framework is being developed via a 
consultation process. This will look at 
congestion and the wider issues of Staines 
including the existing infrastructure, 
development opportunities and how the town 
should look and be navigated in the future.

A33 Access to superfast broadband A 
successful bid was made to Enterprise M3 
Local Enterprise Partnership for £500k which 

6  https://www.ispreview.co.uk/index.php/2020/01/openreach-add-7-new-uk-areas-to-fttp-gigabit-broadband-plan.html

was match funded by SBC to put into place 
fibre to the premises (FTTP) to connect homes 
and businesses to broadband speeds up to 
1GBps in Staines-upon-Thames. However, this 
was later returned as the project may have 
breached State Aid rules. In January 2020 
Openreach announced the installation of FTTP 
in seven new locations across the U.K for 
2020; this included Sunbury-on-Thames.6

A34 Surrey Rail Strategy – Zone 6 campaign 
has been running 4 years. A research 
document has been commissioned by SBC 
with Royal Holloway University to develop a 
business case; the findings were presented 
in January 2020. Discussions with southwest 
Trains and Transport for London have not been 
productive and during the pandemic period, 
this was placed on hold.

A36 Reduce carbon emissions: Spelthorne 
council were successful in 2019 with an 
application in collaboration with 3 other Surrey 
Councils which resulted in an award which will 
see the installation of up to 20 on-street EV 
charge points in our Borough.

Page 27



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

14

This Economic Prosperity Strategy has applied the principles of the SBC Corporate Values 2022 
throughout the development and production of this document.

Page 28



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

15

Theme 1 - Growth and Competitiveness
1.1. Spelthorne’s inherent economic strength, in terms of business base, excellent 

communication links and location, means its scope for future economic growth is very 
strong. 

1.2. The availability of positive planning policies, sites available with planning permission and 
vacant premises provide the physical capacity for both the expansion of businesses 
already in the area as well as those looking to relocate. This will support continuing inward 
investment to the Borough. A new Local Plan has been completed and in July 2022 is out 
for consultation with the community

1.3. In the wider area, including the Enterprise M3 LEP, the supply of vacant premises and 
sites with planning permission are considerable in comparison to current market demand. 
Therefore, if the Council is to realise the potential for growth it needs to continue to be more 
pro-active in securing the implementation of development and in attracting new businesses. 

1.4. There are various existing initiatives, including those to further promote the Borough 
generally, and specifically Staines-upon-Thames. The Council will take actions to further this 
work and also secure the long-term success of Ashford and explore the need for further 
initiatives to support Shepperton, Sunbury-on-Thames and Stanwell.

1.5. A number of services the Council provide either affect businesses or are relied on by them. 
These include planning and building control, food inspections, licensing, pollution control, 
etc. The Council recognises the need to continue to ensure these operate in a way that, as 
appropriate, supports business needs. 

Theme 1: Growth and Competitiveness

Ref Action Implementation RAG

A1 Promoting the 
Borough as a 
location for business

a.  We will continually refresh and update the dedicated 
‘Choose Spelthorne’ website that supports and 
promotes inward investment for the Borough. 
https://choosespelthorne.com/ 
https://vimeo.com/303973036/41842bd4a6

b.  We will create a new video to complement the 
one above which focuses on Staines-upon-Thames 
that showcases the whole borough which will be 
included on the new inward investment website

c.  We will utilise the Costar software to identify 
businesses where their leases are coming to an 
end or break clause and send them a ‘Welcome 
to Spelthorne’ pack to promote communications 
regarding future relocation.

Timescale: 
a. January 2023
b. September 2023
c.  A search will be done once a quarter starting in 

January 2023 

6 Action Plan 2023 - 2028

Page 29



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

16

Theme 1: Growth and Competitiveness
Ref Action Implementation RAG

A1 
(cont.)

Promoting the 
Borough as a 
location for business 
(cont.)

Measure of Success

a.  At least 250 visits to the site in year one starting 
January 2023 and aim to increase by 10% each year 
from the 2023-24 baseline figure.

b.  Positive on-line comments / Feedback from the E.D 
Committee

c.  At least 2 meetings with businesses that respond a 
year.

Lead: SEDO7/EDM8 EDO9 

A2 Smarter working 
with business 
groups and providing 
a focus on local 
needs in our smaller 
towns.

a.  We will work with established business forums and 
Chambers and build new relationships with business 
groups on the border of Spelthorne.

b.  We will develop a separate Town Strategy in 
partnership with businesses for Ashford, Shepperton 
and Sunbury (Staines already has a business 
improvement district) to help build stronger business 
communities and improve trading opportunities for 
retailers. This will include as appropriate, specific 
measures / approaches for each of the above 3 
towns situated in the Borough. This will include a 
satisfaction survey to provide a benchmark with 
regards to business confidence levels.

c.  We will build relationships with shopping parades 
situated across the borough and organise an event 
just for businesses based in these shopping parades 
including a presentation by a relevant speaker. A 
survey will also be carried out to better understand 
the challenges and needs of this business group 
which will subsequently inform this document with 
regards to future actions.

d.  We will deliver an annual Business Leaders Lunch 
/ Dinner where senior representatives from the 
largest businesses in the Borough attend an informal 
meeting including the Chief Executive and Leader of 
SBC.

e.  We will work with Surrey colleagues at Elmbridge 
and Runnymede with regards to an annual Business 
Leaders Lunch from all 3 Boroughs and MP’s. This 
may be extended to also include Surrey Heath and 
Woking Councils. We will also look at opportunities 
for joint projects with one or more of the above local 
authority areas.

7 Senior Economic Development Officer

8 Economic Development Manager

9 Economic Development Officer

Page 30



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

17

Theme 1: Growth and Competitiveness
Ref Action Implementation RAG

A2 
(cont.)

Smarter working 
with business 
groups and providing 
a focus on local 
needs in our smaller 
towns. (cont.)

Timescale: 
a.  By 31.03.23
b.  By January 2023
c.  By March 2023
d.  By January 2023 then annually
e.  By September 2023 then annually

Measures of Success
a.  Attend each of the local meetings of existing 

Spelthorne business forums at least twice a year. 
Develop relationships with at least 2 other boroughs 
which will lead to joint events with business from 
each borough attending.

b.  A Town Centre Strategy including three Action Plans 
will be created that businesses have contributed 
towards. Success will be measured by delivery 
of the agreed actions and subsequent annual 
satisfaction surveys which will show improved 
confidence and satisfaction brought about by the 
delivery of agreed actions.

c.  Success will be measured by the annual satisfaction 
surveys as well as engagement by at least 15 
representatives from shopping parades at the event 
designed specifically for them

d.  Feedback from attendees in respect of the value of 
the business lunch.

e.  Feedback from attendees in respect of the value of 
the business lunch.

Lead: EDM / SEDO / TCM

A3 Managing quality 
of support from 
the Economic 
Development Team

a.  A customer satisfaction survey will be developed 
and sent to businesses visited by a member of the 
E.D Team to establish the quality of engagement 
and support. This will occur 2 times a year for each 
officer on the team.

Timescale: 
a. Start February 2023 (twice annually)

Measure of Success
a.  Identification of training needs as well as evidence 

of appreciation of good work. Average satisfaction 
responses for each officer should not be lower that 
7 out of 10

Lead: EDM

Page 31



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

18

Theme 1: Growth and Competitiveness
Ref Action Implementation RAG

A4 Entrepreneurship has 
been encouraged 
by the Council, 
particularly through 
the investment 
of the Business 
Incubator

a.  Through an independent operator for the SBC 
business incubator, we will encourage start-ups to 
take advantage of cheap hot-desking access coupled 
with mentoring and support. We will run regular 
‘Open Days’ in order to provide an opportunity as to 
what the business hub offers.

b.  We will provide a copy of the ‘How to Start a 
Business’ book to all hot-desk clients and people 
who contact the Team for enquiries about starting a 
business up.

c.  We will organise an annual ‘So You Want to Start 
a Business?’ event for people who want to know 
more.

d.  We will introduce a new networking event for 
computer programmers and high-tech, digital 
businesses similar to the Tedx programme 

e.  We will organise at least one event a year where 
children from local secondary schools are invited to 
attend the incubator, receive a presentation and a Q 
& A session about becoming self-employed.

f.  We will help support and deliver the Annual Business 
Plan Competition in conjunction with the office of 
our MP Kwasi Kwarteng which encourages new 
entrepreneurs and provides a cash prize to get new 
businesses started within the Borough. We will 
commit to this project for the life of the strategy. 
There will also be a Best Start-up Category for the 
Spelthorne Business Awards

g.  We will identify additional partners to help the 
incubator become the go-to place for business 
support. This will include connecting with Royal 
Holloway University and Surrey University as well as 
other relevant businesses.

h.  Introduce an ‘Adopt an Entrepreneur’ scheme 
where established businesses agree to support and 
develop a new business linked to their industry type.

Timescale: 
a.  On-going – Open days are at least once a quarter.
b.  Ongoing
c.  September 2023 (at least once a year)
d.  2 to 3 times annually
e.  Annually
f.  Annually
g.  In the first year of the strategy
h.  Ongoing from adoption of the strategy

Page 32



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

19

Theme 1: Growth and Competitiveness
Ref Action Implementation RAG

A4 
(cont.)

Entrepreneurship has 
been encouraged 
by the Council, 
particularly through 
the investment 
of the Business 
Incubator (cont.)

Measures of Success
a.  By February 2023 to have at least 20 businesses 

operating out of the incubator with a minimum of 
50% of them in the high-tech sector

b.  To have at least 20 people from the high-tech sector 
to attend and recruit at least 1 person because of 
the event to the incubator.

c.  This will become a popular event welcomed by 
schools and lead to engagement with at least 1 
young person who needs support from the E.D 
Team to get a new business off the ground.

d.  The 5 finalists will receive help and support from the 
E.D Team with their business to assist in making a 
proposal become a business

e.  Feedback from teachers and pupils

f.  Feedback from Kwasi and his staff

g.  New partners actively engaging with support of the 
incubator and providing a new stream of mentorship 
and support

h.  At least 1 person will be ‘adopted’ by a business for 
each year of the strategy

Lead: EDM / SEDO / EDO

A5 To help Spelthorne 
businesses become 
a greener and 
cleaner economy

a.  We will monitor grants and other opportunities 
for our businesses to become carbon neutral and 
encourage a greener environment. This would 
include schemes such as LoCASE10 

b.  We will hold at least one event a year in conjunction 
with the SBC Sustainability Team for businesses, 
providing them with information and support to 
become carbon neutral, use less fuel and become 
more energy efficient and encourage a broader 
green economy and more green jobs.

c.  Provide support for businesses to help reduce the 
costs energy costs of running a business through 
the contract with the Place Support Partnership.

d.  With the inclusion of the Best Sustainable Business 
category in the Spelthorne Business Awards, 
promote businesses to adopt energy efficiency 
measures to reduce the impact on the climate and 
showcase good practice.

e.  At the annual Business Leaders meeting, a standing 
item on climate change and what businesses are 
doing to tackle it will be included.

10 What is Low carbon across the South and East (LoCASE) and why green your business - Surrey County Council (surreycc.gov.uk)

Page 33



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

20

Theme 1: Growth and Competitiveness
Ref Action Implementation RAG

A5 
(cont.)

To help Spelthorne 
businesses become 
a greener and 
cleaner economy 
(cont.)

f.  Capitalise on the unique design on the facility as an 
opportunity to boost tourism in the borough. The 
Passivhaus facility will also contribute towards a 
Greener Spelthorne.

g.  To develop sustainable procurement strategy and 
ensure local and sustainable purchasing is built into 
procurement practice. 

Timeframe
a.  Life of the strategy
b.  Annually
c.  Until summer 2023
d.  Annually
e.  Annually
f.  Life of the strategy
g.  Within 5 years

Measure of success
a.  The uptake of LoCASE by businesses in Spelthorne 

compared to other Surrey authorities will be in the 
top 4

b.  The event will showcase best practice, available 
funding and raise the profile of the green agenda 
and the business opportunities available to increase 
trade and create jobs.

c.  The support will identify and collect case studies 
that can provide evidence of savings by businesses 
for other businesses to learn from and circulated via 
SBC and SBF websites.

d.  Through the content of the entries for this category 
we will identify good practice and circulate to other 
businesses; it will also provide evidence about what 
businesses are doing and can do to improve the 
environment.

e.  The forum will provide the leadership to inspire other 
smaller businesses to become more environmentally 
friendly and adopt more efficient practices in the 
workplace.

f.  Local residents will access job opportunities, a tour 
of the new facility will be made available to residents 
to encourage local applications for new posts. 

g.  Sustainability is effectively built into all purchases.

Lead: EDO / SEDO / Procurement Team 

Page 34



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

21

Theme 2 - People
2.1. The best paid jobs and careers are generally obtained by people with higher skill sets and 

qualifications, for Spelthorne to compete for higher salaries there needs to be significant 
improvement in access to education. 

2.2. Evidence shows there are lower qualification levels amongst residents in Spelthorne 
compared to other areas. Educational attainment levels have dropped since the last 
economic strategy and the number of residents without any qualifications has increased. 
This can be seen in the 2 charts below. 

2.3. The quality of facilities and delivery of education need to improve to close the attainment 
gap with not just Surrey, but the rest of the country. Whereas other locations have seen an 
increase in higher qualifications over this time and reduced numbers without qualifications, 
the opposite is true of Spelthorne. The absence of a 6th Form College (outside of the 
private schooling) for academic qualifications situated in the borough, is undoubtedly a 
contributing factor.

2.4. 

Spelthorne Surrey Great Britain South East
Jan - Dec 2017 % NVQ Level 4+

16-64 35.8 49.9 38.5 41.3

Jan - Dec 2021 % NVQ Level 4+
16-64 33.5 54.4 43.5 45.1

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2017 and 2021 NVQ Level 4+

2.5. 

Spelthorne Surrey Great Britain South East
Jan - Dec 2017 % No
Qualifications 16-64 6.4 4.3 7.7 5.2

Jan - Dec 2021 % No
Qualifications 16-64 10.2 4.3 6.6 5

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

% No Qualifications

Page 35



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

22

2.6. Surrey County Council 
is the Local Education 
Authority (LEA) for primary 
and secondary education 
in Spelthorne. Whilst new 
models of organisation, 
including ‘academy’ status, 
reduce the extent of LEA 
control it nevertheless has 
ultimate responsibility. The 
Spelthorne Joint Committee 
of the County Council, as well 
as the Children and Education 
Select Committee, has a 
particular role to scrutinise 
and support local schools. 
Brooklands College is a 
Further Education College 
focusing on vocational skills 
that moved into brand new accommodation on the same site as Thomas Knyvett School in 
Ashford. It is also providing a new facility on the previous Brooklands site for hairdressing.

Theme 2: People - Education Provision

Ref Action Implementation RAG

B1 To promote coding 
clubs within the 
Borough. 

a.  We will promote and create at least 1 further coding 
club in the Borough. 

b.  We will hold a coding competition / event within the 
borough for young people. Possible via Raspberry 

Timescale 
a. By September 2023
b. By April 2024
Measure of Success
a.  At least 1 more school will have set up an after-

school coding club.
b.  The competition will stimulate further interest and 

encourage other schools to engage.
Lead: EDO

B2 The Council 
will support the 
development of 
vocational training 
including:

a.  Working with Human Resources Department to 
encourage the further take-up of apprenticeships by 
staff within the Council. 

b.  To work with companies who pay the levy to 
introduce a levy gifting scheme so surplus levy 
funds can be transferred to smaller non-levy paying 
business so they can create more apprentices. 
Based on the ‘Salford Model’11. 

c.  To signpost businesses not paying the levy to funds 
that would pay for training of staff from donations by 
businesses that do not use all their levy through a 
levy gifting scheme.

11 https://www.salford.gov.uk/jobs-skills-and-work/apprenticeship-support/are-you-a-business/salford-skills-for-business-apprenticeship-fund/

Page 36



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

23

Theme 2: People - Education Provision
Ref Action Implementation RAG

B2 
(cont.)

The Council 
will support the 
development of 
vocational training 
including: 
(cont.)

Timescale: 
a.  Duration of the strategy
b.  Duration of the strategy
c.  Duration of the strategy

Measure of Success
a.  This would lead to a reduction by at least 50% in the 

amount of levy paid back to government. Baseline 
for 2021 £7k returned levy payments.

b.  Feedback from businesses that more levies have 
been utilised. Promote SBC as a friend of small 
businesses.

c.  A baseline of businesses helped by the availability of 
the levy will be set in April 2023 and realistic future 
goals will be set when this figure is known.

Lead: SEDM

Theme 2: People -  Promoting education, training, and high levels  
of attainment

Ref Action Implementation RAG

B3 When Heathrow 
Airport Limited 
(HAL) returns 
to normalised 
operations and the 
Heathrow Academy 
opens to work with 
the Academy team 
to access places 
for Spelthorne 
residents.

This provides the 
2 weeks training 
necessary for many 
of the ‘air-side’ 
work opportunities 
at Heathrow. The 
scheme draws 
people from 
Spelthorne and 4 
other boroughs 
around Heathrow 
and focusses 
on construction, 
retailing and aviation.

a.  To organise a large Spelthorne Skills & Jobs Fair 
inviting amongst other, staff from Heathrow to take 
a stall.

b.  To invite Runnymede and Elmbridge Boroughs to 
engage in the event with their schools / businesses.

c.  Produce an ‘Economic Dashboard’ for every 
Committee meeting that provides high level 
information on the level of unemployment in the 
Borough compared to Surrey, southeast and GB 
so it is clear whether the situation is improving or 
worsening within the borough.

Timescale: 
a. Spring 2023
b. Spring 2023
c. Prepared for each E.D Committee Meeting

Measure of Success
a.  Feedback from Heathrow regarding the numbers of 

Spelthorne residents have applied for / attending the 
Academy

b.  At least one other Borough joins the Jobs & Skills 
Fair event.

c.  Responses are developed if unemployment 
disproportionately increases in Spelthorne compared 
to elsewhere.

Lead: SEDO 

Page 37



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

24

Theme 2: People -  Promoting education, training, and high levels  
of attainment

Ref Action Implementation RAG

B4 To work with and 
support companies 
that promote 
STEM (Science, 
Technology, 
Engineering and 
Mathematics) 
subjects. Support 
for business’s 
schools programmes 
(including schemes 
by BP and Heathrow) 
which focus on 
Science, Technology, 
Engineering and 
Maths (STEM).

We will make best use of current activity by various 
employers who reach out to our schools and Colleges 
to support interest in (STEM) subjects and provide 
support. Heathrow and BP have provided (pre-
Covid-19) opportunities for junior and secondary 
schools to engage in STEM activities

Timescale: September 2023

Measure of Success
Engagement by at least 75% of schools in the borough 
with these events (if still delivered)

Lead: EDO / SEDO.

B5 To support and 
promote Social 
Enterprises within 
the Borough

We will encourage existing social enterprises and 
support new enterprises setup within the Borough, 

Timescale: September 2023

Measure of Success
Will have worked with and directly supported at least 
5 social enterprises and helped to have set up 1 social 
enterprise.

Lead: EDM

Theme 2: People - Assisting ‘work readiness’
Ref Action Implementation RAG

B6 Support the Youth 
Hub (16–24-year-
olds)

a.  Working with DWP, A2D and others promote the 
Youth Hub as a venue to give help, advice and 
support to young people regarding education, 
training and jobs. Build resilience into the project 
outside of the grant funding from DWP and Levelling 
Up Fund with a dedicated website and App.

b.  A programme of Job Fairs that are sector specific 
will be ran over the life of the Youth Hub

Timeframe
a.  Until December 2023 – longer if additional funding is 

found.
b.  Life of the Youth Hub

Measure of Success
a.  All aspects of the actions and outcomes in the 

contract with DWP will have been delivered.

b.  At least 8 Job / Career Fairs will be held at the Hub

Lead: SEDO

Page 38



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

25

Theme 2: People - Assisting ‘work readiness’
Ref Action Implementation RAG

B7 Promoting Corporate 
Social Responsibility

a.  We will encourage businesses within the borough to 
donate money, goods, and services to good causes, 
including the Mayor’s Charities, Business Plan 
Competition and Business Awards.

Timescale: 
a.  September 2023 then annually

Measure of Success
a.  At least £30k by value in cash, goods or services in 

kind raised in each year of the strategy. 

Lead: EDM / SEDM

B8 Deliver IT related 
courses for the 
elderly.

Support the elderly 
population to safely 
access the benefits 
of internet shopping 
as well as the social 
and educational 
opportunities it 
presents. This 
will help give 
access to home 
deliveries as well as 
cheaper purchases 
of goods and 
increase personal 
independence.

a.  We will work with other agencies including Surrey 
County Council / SBF/ A2 Dominion / University of 
the First Age and Women’s Institute to enhance the 
availability of introductory courses for the elderly 
regarding the use of computers and accessing the 
internet and internet shopping / cyber security. 

Timescale: 
October 2023

Measure of Success
At least 1 course for each year of the strategy. 
Feedback will be at least an average score of 7 in 
terms of satisfaction with the course.

Lead: EDM / SEDO / EDO

B9 Improving Skills and 
qualifications of our 
residents and access 
to jobs

a.  We will deliver and promote a Spelthorne Jobs & 
Skills Fair in partnership with other organisations 
including Kempton Park. This will encourage people 
to aspire to further education or other vocational 
skills to enable them to better access quality jobs. 
It will also bring together local employers who are 
looking to recruit staff and local education providers 
to offer training opportunities.

b.  If jobs do not return to a similar level at Heathrow, 
we will hold a mini ‘Jobs Fair’ in the Community Hall 
in Stanwell which will give easy access to those 
families most affected and where unemployment 
will be the highest.

Page 39



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

26

Theme 2: People - Assisting ‘work readiness’
Ref Action Implementation RAG

B9 
(cont.)

Improving Skills and 
qualifications of our 
residents and access 
to jobs (cont.)

c.  Working with ‘I Choose Local’ we will offer a digital 
approach to job hunting, created and shaped by the 
generation that need, and will evolve, a cross platform 
and multi-media solution that fits their world, creating 
a new path to employment and training.

d.  Deliver a project called Bounceback Street in 
partnership with I chose Local and BUPA to support 
the older generation of low skilled / low paid 
workforce that have been made redundant due to 
the pandemic. The project will help with mental 
health and access to new jobs and funding for re-
training opportunities.

e.  We will work with Runnymede Council to explore 
opportunities with Netflix for residents in both 
boroughs to access jobs in film and media as Netflix 
is situated within both boroughs.

f.  We will work with SCC colleagues and councillors 
regarding educational standards in order to better 
understand the reasons for the deteriorating 
standards of attainment and influence their 
improvement. 

Timescale: 
a.  To be delivered within the first 12 months of the 

strategy and every year for the life of the strategy.
b.  As soon as there is evidence of disproportionate 

increase in unemployment
c.  April 2023
d.  By April 2023
e.  Throughout the strategy, starting in Spring 2023
f.  Over 5 years

Measure of Success
a.  There are at least 50 employers present and the 

event is attended by at least 500 people including 
schools.

b.  We will have at least 15 businesses and an 
attendance of at least 100 people

c.  In year one, the app will be at least 100 young 
people signed up and there is positive feedback 
from DWP and users.

d.  At least two group workshops run in 2022.
e.  Opportunities specific for both boroughs will be 

made available for residents to obtain training / 
employment within the Netflix organisation

f.  In 5 years’ time Spelthorne will at least be equal to 
the standards achieved in G.B.

Lead: SEDO / EDM

Page 40



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

27

Theme 2: People - Health Improvement
Ref Action Implementation RAG

B10 a.  We will work towards 
improving the health of 
residents and the workforce 
within the Borough. This 
will be achieved by the 
promotion of various schemes 
designed to support the 
improvement of personal 
health and wellbeing focusing 
on promoting physical activity, 
boosting mental health and 
reducing obesity. We work in 
liaison with partners via the 
Health and Wellbeing Group, 
the Local CCG and Public 
Health.

b.  We will also promote healthy 
living including an increase 
in cycling and walking in 
conjunction with other partner 
agencies such as Surrey 
County Council and Active 
Surrey.

c.  Local walking and cycling 
infrastructure plan – work 
in liaison with SCC and 
partners to help facilitate 
both the development and 
implementation of the plan. 
Work with community groups 
to prioritise local need. 
Encourage local residents to 
use the new infrastructure for 
active travel as part of their 
daily lives for work, education 
and social activities. 

d.  Link in with the Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy as well the 
Leisure and Arts & Culture 
Strategies.

To include continued implementation of the 
following schemes lead by the Leisure and 
Culture Team:

a.  Continue to coordinate the Walking 
for Health Scheme, Cycling for 
Health Scheme and support both the 
Exercise Referral Scheme and Weight 
Management Courses at Spelthorne and 
Sunbury Leisure Centre.

b.  We will explore opportunities through 
our Council Leisure Team by promoting 
health related opportunities and 
in partnership with public / private 
businesses in this sector.

c.  Capitalise on the development of 
Shepperton Studios and the Oast 
House by establishing Spelthorne as 
an attractive environment for creative 
industries to do business and promoting 
arts & culture within the Borough.

d.  Maximise the opportunities for social 
value outcomes through the services 
provided by the build contractor Wilmott 
Dixon during the build of the new 
Spelthorne Leisure Centre. 

e.  Promote the opportunities that will be 
available as part of the new Spelthorne 
Leisure Centre including the creation of 
employment opportunities as well as the 
health benefits of using the facilities. 

f.  We will work strategically with key 
businesses and the health sector (re the 
health and wellbeing centre) as well as 
Well North Enterprises to encourage 
them to invest in improving health 
outcomes for the local communities/
employees. 

g.  We will deliver an annual Health & 
Wellbeing Event once a year and work 
with SCC to help improve health of the 
Spelthorne workforce.

Page 41



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

28

Theme 2: People - Health Improvement
Ref Action Implementation RAG

B10 
(cont.)

(cont.)

a.  We will work towards 
improving the health of 
residents and the workforce 
within the Borough. This 
will be achieved by the 
promotion of various schemes 
designed to support the 
improvement of personal 
health and wellbeing focusing 
on promoting physical activity, 
boosting mental health and 
reducing obesity. We work in 
liaison with partners via the 
Health and Wellbeing Group, 
the Local CCG and Public 
Health.

b.  We will also promote healthy 
living including an increase 
in cycling and walking in 
conjunction with other partner 
agencies such as Surrey 
County Council and Active 
Surrey.

c.  Local walking and cycling 
infrastructure plan – work 
in liaison with SCC and 
partners to help facilitate 
both the development and 
implementation of the plan. 
Work with community groups 
to prioritise local need. 
Encourage local residents to 
use the new infrastructure for 
active travel as part of their 
daily lives for work, education 
and social activities. 

d.  Link in with the Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy as well the 
Leisure and Arts & Culture 
Strategies.

Timescale: 

a. b. c. d. Life of the strategy
e. During life of the strategy.
f.  Delivered over the life of the 

strategy
g.  1 event for each year of the 

strategy

Measure of Success

a.  Will have visited at least 3 large 
businesses in each year of the strategy 
to encourage engagement with a 
healthier workforce

b.  Will hold 1 event with the Leisure 
Services and Economic Development 
Team to encourage creative industries 
into the borough. Initiatives at the Oast 
House will only apply if funding can be 
found.

c.  Promotional material will be produced to 
highlight the leisure centre as a tourist 
destination as well as an example of 
what green engineering can achieve.

d.  Jobs are accessed by Spelthorne 
residents.

e.  Feedback on web pages with regards to 
the implementation of the Passivhaus 
facility.

f.  Health & Wellbeing Centre delivered.

g.  1 Health and Wellbeing Event delivered 
every year of the strategy. Engaged with 
at least 6 businesses with SCC to help 
promote the Standards Charter.

Lead: Leisure Services Manager / SEDO

Page 42



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

29

Theme 3 – Business Environment
3.1. The Council has an important role to play in supporting businesses and business 

organisations in the Borough, this commitment has been re-enforced with Economic 
Development delivery accountable to the Economic Development Committee.

3.2. The Corporate Plan12 has 5 Key Priorities with economic development linked to every area.

3.3. A close and hands-on involvement will continue in support for the Spelthorne Business 
Forum (SBF)13. 

3.4. The Council has a long-standing relationship with major employers and businesses such as 
BP, the Elmsleigh Centre, Two Rivers and Shepperton Studios. There is scope to extend 
such relationships to a greater number of organisations and widen the support the Council 
can give.

3.5. The Council has land and other assets which, subject to wider service delivery to the 
public can be used to support the economy generally. For example, it owns the freehold of 
the Elmsleigh Centre in Staines-upon-Thames and in February 2020 bought the leasehold 
for the shopping centre; the council also acquired the site in which the BP International 
Centre for Business & Technology in Sunbury is situated. This provides not only an income 
to the Council but in the case of the Elmsleigh Centre, an opportunity to help ensure it 
continues to best meet the shopping needs of those who live in its catchment area.

12 https://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/corporateplan

13  Membership of the SBF is free and it operates monthly networking events, one-off training events and networking and speakers at breakfast events. 
Membership currently exceeds 650 businesses and business groups. Support is also given to local Chambers of Commerce and business organisations.

Page 43



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

30

3.6. The Council will champion the needs of businesses and, where appropriate, assist in 
fostering new or existing business sectors. Several of the following actions reflect this. 
The Council’s membership of Enterprise M3 LEP and its role in promoting business across 
a wider area is increasingly important as the Government seeks to direct more financial 
resources and responsibility for spending to LEPs. 

3.7. The River Thames is a huge amenity asset and has a river frontage of more than 11 miles. 
There is scope to develop the visitor economy, taking advantage of the Thames and the 
many parks, open spaces and historic villages which adjoin it. Under Action (A24) the 
Council will further investigate the scope to grow the visitor economy/tourism. 

3.8. The Council will champion the needs of businesses and, where appropriate, assist in 
fostering new or existing business sectors. Several of the following actions reflect this. 
The Council’s membership of Enterprise M3 LEP and its role in promoting business across 
a wider area is increasingly important as the Government seeks to direct more financial 
resources and responsibility for spending to LEPs. 

3.9. The River Thames is a huge amenity asset and has a river frontage of more than 11 
miles. There is scope to develop the visitor economy, taking advantage of the Thames 
and the many parks, open spaces and historic villages which adjoin it. A new jetty was 
installed in 2019 to support the river bus industry drop off and collect passenger visiting 
and leaving Staines-upon Thames. Under Action (A24) the Council has developed a Visitor 
Economy Forum consisting of many of the groups that make up this sector; we will further 
investigate the scope to grow the visitor economy/tourism.

Page 44



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

31

Theme 3: Business Environment

Ref Action Implementation RAG

C1 The Council will 
continue to support 
the Spelthorne 
Business Forum 
as the primary 
business support 
and promotion 
organisation in the 
Borough.

a.  We will be an active member of the Spelthorne 
Business Forum (SBF) helping to organise events 
and provide promotional space on the Council’s 
website and paper Bulletin.

b.  Will organise the annual business riverboat cruise 
along the Thames

c.  Together we will provide a regular supply of business 
networking / training meetings including a minimum 
of 6 evening meetings and 4 breakfast meetings a 
year.

d.  Will promote the borough as a place to do business 
and utilise social media and the sbf website to 
promote the best of Spelthorne.

e.  SBC will commit to continue to financially support 
the sbf through the business rates retention fund 
that will provide up to £10k a year.

Timescale: 
a.  Life of the strategy
b.  September / October each year
c.  Annually
d.  Life of the strategy
e.  Life of the strategy

Measure of Success
a.  Feedback from the SBF with regards to the level of 

attendance at events

b.  The business riverboat trip is at capacity

c.  A feedback form will be used annually to understand 
how the events were received. 

d.  The sbf membership will grow by 10% annually

e.  The business led sbf will as an arm of the council 
continue to support businesses and increase its level 
of communication and influence.

Lead: SEDM / EDM

C2 Increase the amount 
of money spent 
within the borough 
by the council.

a.  Working with the SBF and procurement team ensure 
that the new rules within procurement standing 
orders are followed and the sbf promote access to 
the web-based business directory which will provide 
a source of businesses to purchase from. Assistance 
will also be available from the E.D Team.

b.  We will encourage other large businesses based 
within the borough to adopt a pro-buy local where 
policy and procurement restrictions allow.

Page 45



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

32

Theme 3: Business Environment
Ref Action Implementation RAG

C2 
(cont.)

Increase the amount 
of money spent 
within the borough 
by the council. 
(cont.)

Timescale: 
a.  With immediate effect.
b.  2023

Measure of Success
a.  There will be an increase in the amount spent in the 

borough to at least 25% of procurement of goods / 
services under £5k compared to the baseline year of 
1.8.21 to 31.7.22. During this period the total of this 
amount spent was £2,448,840 of which £444,687 
was spent in the borough. This represents 18.2%. 

b.  Case studies from businesses that have engaged 
will provide evidence of greater local purchases. 
Where possible, a baseline will be obtained.

Lead: EDM. 

C3 The Council will 
champion the needs 
of businesses, 
local procurement, 
promote innovation, 
and create 
opportunities to 
highlight best 
practice and the best 
businesses in the 
Borough.

a.  Additionally, support will be provided through 
organising events in partnership with the SBF that 
are dedicated to particular subject areas such as 
funding streams, on-line web presence or starting a 
business.

b.  Deliver the Spelthorne Business Awards event to 
recognise and celebrate the best businesses in the 
Borough. 

c.  Signpost businesses to the free SBF website to 
register their businesses on the business directory. 
www.spelthornebusinessforum.uk/directory

d.  Take an active role in the Business Improvement 
District for Staines-upon-Thames14 

e.  Provide free training on digital skills for businesses. 

f.  Set up pop-up-shop where budding entrepreneurs 
can test the market in advance of setting up a 
business: 

Timescale:
a.  With immediate effect and for the life of the strategy
b.  Annually throughout the period of the strategy
c.  Continually
d.  Ongoing – The BID was re-elected in April 2022 for 

5 years.
e.  From September 2022 –June 2024
f.  When opportunities become available via suitable 

shops that are vacant.

14 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/business-improvement-districts

Page 46

http://www.spelthornebusinessforum.uk/directory


Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

33

Theme 3: Business Environment
Ref Action Implementation RAG

C3 
(cont.)

The Council will 
champion the needs 
of businesses, 
local procurement, 
promote innovation, 
and create 
opportunities to 
highlight best 
practice and the best 
businesses in the 
Borough.

(cont.)

Measure of Success
a.  Feedback on quality of support will be at least an 

average of 7. 
b.  Feedback forms will be sent to finalists after the 

event and satisfaction levels will attract a satisfaction 
level of at least 7

c.  The number of businesses registered will increase 
by at least 5% each year for the next 5 years. 
Baseline = 236

d.  There will be at least one officer from SBC on the 
BID Board

e.  Feedback from those business in receipt of training 
and questionnaire follow up after 6 months.

f.  At least 3 pop up shops are activated over the 5 
years of the strategy.

Lead: EDM

C4 The Council will 
initiate investigation 
of business sectors 
where there appears 
scope for growth, 
including tourism, 
and leisure and 
possible business 
clusters

a.  To maintain a Visitor Economy Forum with local 
businesses in that sector

b.  Promote the night-time economy in Staines-upon-
Thames by investigating opportunities to enhance 
our cultural offer, such as supporting Leisure and 
Wellbeing Team developing a theatre or / and other 
attractions.

Timescale: 
a.  Life of the strategy
b.  Life of the strategy

Measure of Success
a.  Case studies will show how initiatives proposed / 

delivered by the group have benefited the visitor 
economy.

b.  Engage with the BID on at least 1 activity a year to 
promote the town.

Lead: EDO

C5 Provide direct 
support for 
businesses to help 
with running the 
business more 
effectively and 
profitably by effective 
utilisation of the 
additional restrictions 
grant fund (ARG) 
and the Levelling up 
Grant.

a.  Promote free professional business advice to 
Spelthorne businesses and residents via the 
business support procured via the Additional 
Restrictions Grant for all businesses as well as new-
start businesses and people thinking of starting a 
business.

b.  Provide 9 training sessions on ‘Social Media for 
Business’ over the next 2 years

c.  Provide 30 web sites free of charge to businesses 
that would benefit most

Page 47



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

34

Theme 3: Business Environment
Ref Action Implementation RAG

C5 
(cont.)

Provide direct 
support for 
businesses to help 
with running the 
business more 
effectively and 
profitably by effective 
utilisation of the 
additional restrictions 
grant fund (ARG) 
and the Levelling up 
Grant.  
(cont.)

d.  Provide free 1 year membership to the Federation of 
Small Businesses for those companies that would 
make the best use of this support, with up to 25 
available.

e.  The E. D Team will help facilitate the delivery of the 
shared prosperity fund investment plan (2023- 25) 
as allocated to E.D.

Timescale:

a.  By February 2023

b.  By August 2024

c.  By April 2023

d.  By August 2023

e.  2023 - 2025

Measure of Success

a.  Positive feedback collected over the delivery period 
including possible case studies

b.  Positive feedback after each course with at least an 
average of 7 out of 10 in satisfaction.

c.  Positive feedback as well as evidence from google 
analytics

d.  Feedback from a dip sample of those who 
benefitted from this support.

e.  Positive feedback with physical evidence of savings 
for our businesses.

f.  Delivery of the projects funded will commence in 
2023 including 1 – 1 business coaching and the 
Youth Hub for 16–24-year-olds.

C6 Support and 
promote exporting

We will work with relevant Partner organisations such 
as Surrey Chambers of Commerce and Department of 
International Trade (DIT) to promote and encourage the 
opportunities available for our businesses through the 
export market.

Timescale: 2023

Measure of Success
To promote at least 1 event focusing on exporting for 
each year of the strategy starting in 2023.

Lead: SEDO

Page 48



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

35

Theme 3: Business Environment
Ref Action Implementation RAG

C7 Business support 
to make best use of 
social media

The Economic Development Team will provide 1-1 
support and guidance for businesses not confident 
with social media.

Timescale: Starting in 2023

Measure of Success
At least 5 businesses will be supported annually, and 
feedback will be at least a score of 7

Lead: EDM

C8 Accessibility and 
equal opportunities 
and support for the 
voluntary sector

a.  We will work with Shopmobility and other similar 
services situated within the Borough, to help sustain 
their presence, promote the service on offer to 
those that require assistance to shop, enjoy the 
culinary offer, and socialise within Spelthorne.

b.  We will improve access to funding from business via 
corporate social responsibility (CSR) through access 
to a new website facility and / or an event dedicated 
to encouraging CSR.

c.  We will organise an event for Women in Business 
to provide additional support and encouragement for 
this sector.

d.  We will deliver an event targeted at the culturally 
diverse community for people with a low 
representation within the business community.

Timescale: 
a.  Over the life of the strategy. To formally meet twice 

a year to discuss opportunities and progress
b.  Within 18 months of the strategy commencing
c.  By June 2023
d.  By September 2023

Measure of Success
a.  Shopmobility will continue to trade and grow 

stronger financially.
b.  Voluntary groups will have access to additional 

funding to support their causes
c.  Feedback from the event will be at least 7 out of 10.
d.  Feedback from the event will be at least 7 out of 10

Lead: SEDO

Page 49



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

36

Theme 4 – Infrastructure and Places
4.1. Good transport infrastructure has an important role in supporting an efficient local 

economy and its attractiveness for further investment. Spelthorne, like most authorities 
close to London, experiences congestion to varying degrees within its town centres. 
Ensuring effective management of the transport network is the responsibility of Surrey 
County Council as highway authority. 

4.2. The County Council, Enterprise M3 LEP and the Borough collaborated on a Wider Staines 
Sustainable Transport Package implemented in 2020 which included additional cycle lanes 
throughout the borough. 

4.3. As part of its leisure work the Borough Council is promoting cycling for health. 

4.4. Some parts of the Borough have a limited bus service, with further cuts proposed for 
Heathrow access, improvements in provision need to be seriously considered

4.5. The Borough has good rail access, but two issues need to be resolved in the longer term. 
Firstly, the provision of a southern rail link to Heathrow and secondly increased rail capacity 
in the approaches to Waterloo (Wimbledon to Waterloo) to enable continued growth of 
rail services. Spelthorne have proposed a light rail scheme that would travel from Staines-
upon-Thames to Terminal 5 Heathrow giving a direct link to the airport, something that has 
always been a missing ingredient for the town.

4.6. The other two projects above are highlighted in the Surrey Rail Strategy. That strategy 
particularly highlights the potential roles of Crossrail 2 (regional option) and an extended 
HS2 in providing solutions to both problems. The Shepperton branch line comes within the 
proposed Crossrail 2 network. As part of its Rail Strategy, Surrey County Council is also 
considering shorter term surface access improvements to Heathrow pending longer term 
comprehensive rail solutions which are integrated with the existing network.

Theme 4: Infrastructure and Places

Ref Action Implementation RAG

D1 Proactively seek 
to implement 
development on 
appropriate Council 
sites in Staines-
upon-Thames, 
including: 

Elmsleigh Centre 
extensions, Staines-
upon-Thames 
– Phase 3 and 4 
(Allocations DPD: 
site A10).

a.  The Staines Development Framework (formerly 
known as the Staines Masterplan) will set a clear 
vision and strategy for the transformation and 
regeneration of the centre of Staines, focusing on 
deliverable outcomes and policies. It is intended to 
be capable of adoption as a Supplementary Planning 
Document at the same time the Local Plan is 
adopted. 

Timescale: 
a.  Consultation on both documents is taking place 

during summer 2022.

Measure of Success
a.  The Staines Development Framework will be 

adopted giving SBC a clear vision as to how the 
town should develop in future years, thus producing 
a design that will be of the greatest benefit for those 
that live, work, and visit the town.

Lead: SPM15 

15 Strategic Planning Manager

Page 50



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

37

Theme 4: Infrastructure and Places
Ref Action Implementation RAG

D2 Spelthorne 
Council will take 
a leading role in 
‘place shaping’ the 
Borough.

a.  SBC will look at what opportunities there are to 
acquire properties / sites for residential (either to 
help meet affordable housing needs or for private 
rented). Where possible the Council will also look 
to support the economy through the provision of 
housing opportunities for the local community. 

b.  The Council is also open to acquiring sites which 
are key to a local area within the Borough (where 
it makes financial sense to do so). The intention 
is to focus on those opportunities where there is 
either scope for a wider redevelopment scheme, or 
where there is the opportunity to bring forward a 
development which might not otherwise take place. 
The Council as landowner is able to focus on issues 
that are locally important in a community which a 
private developer may not.

c.  Help to facilitate the delivery of southern rail access 
to Heathrow (Southern Light Rail)

Timescale: a) b) c) On-going.

Measure of Success
a.  This is dependent upon suitable properties 

becoming available.
b.  This is dependent upon suitable properties 

becoming available.
c.  Staines will be better connected via rail to Heathrow 

airport.

Lead: GHRaG16 Task Group on Fixed Assets.

D3 Supporting the 
introduction of 
infrastructure that 
will help businesses 
and communities 
to operate more 
effectively and 
efficiently particularly 
around artificial 
intelligence and the 
‘internet of things’17 

a.  We will investigate the possibility of supporting the 
rollout of 5G to the Borough and work in partnership 
with SCC.

b.  We will continue to work with BT in the rollout of 
full fibre to the premises (FTTP) which provide 
broadband speeds of more than 1GB if required. 
Sunbury is currently undergoing delivery. We will 
encourage and facilitate a further rollout to additional 
areas in Spelthorne

Timescale:
a.  Over the next 5 years
b.  Over the next 5 years

16 Group Head Regeneration and Growth

17 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Internet_of_things

Page 51



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

38

Theme 4: Infrastructure and Places
Ref Action Implementation RAG

D3 
(cont.)

Supporting the 
introduction of 
infrastructure that 
will help businesses 
and communities 
to operate more 
effectively and 
efficiently particularly 
around artificial 
intelligence and the 
‘internet of things’ 
(cont.)

Measure of Success
a.  5G technology would have been introduced to the 

borough (if desired) and benefits of the technology 
will be received by businesses and the community.

b.  Ashford, Shepperton and Staines-upon-Thames 
become full fibre locations

Lead: EDM

D4 Develop functional 
economic area 
priorities

a.  Deliver ‘Upper M3’ shared priority partnership 
projects with Elmbridge and Runnymede Borough 
Councils The project will help identify activities that 
all 3 boroughs have a vested interest in. 

b.  We will lobby for the Oyster Card and Zone 6 for 
Spelthorne. This activity will peak when the SW 
trains franchise comes up for renewal in the next 
few years

c.  Investigate the opportunities for cluster working / 
joint projects with Elmbridge, Runnymede, Surrey 
Heath and Woking as part of collaborative working 
with Surrey and other D&B’s (as per the Surrey 
Delivery Board)

Timescale:
a.  By March 2023 then annually
b.  Begin at least 18 months before the franchise 

comes up for renewal
c.  Agreement between interested boroughs to be 

confirmed via a written agreement / statement by 
April 2023

Measure of success
a.  It will raise the sphere of influence of SBC to outside 

of the Borough and raise the profile of north Surrey 
as an outstanding location for business. Costs to 
deliver the projects will be shared so obtaining value 
for money and reduce financial burdens. A minimum 
of one event in collaboration with another Borough a 
year for every year of the strategy. 

b.  Spelthorne will be considered for Zone 6 status and 
an Oyster Card.

c.  Inter borough projects will provide economies of scale 
and tangible benefits to those councils participating 
for their residents / businesses. Too early to be 
specific about benefits until agreement is reached.

Lead: EDM / SEDO/ GH Regeneration & Growth

Page 52



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

39

Background
6.1. Spelthorne’s economy is part of the wider Heathrow economy covering Hounslow, 

Hillingdon, Richmond, Slough and part of Windsor & Maidenhead, Elmbridge and 
Runnymede. Heathrow is a very strong economic driver of not only the wider economy 
of west London, but also regionally and nationally. Spelthorne’s location on the southern 
airport boundary gives a significant airport related focus to the Spelthorne economy and 
underpins its strength. 

6.2. Spelthorne is part of the Enterprise M3 (EM3) Local Economic Partnership (LEP) area 
stretching from the Borough to the New Forest in Hampshire. Out of 39 LEP’s across 
the country, the EM3 has the third highest gross value added18 per head average annual 
growth rates for the period 1997 to 201519 outside of London (this is the latest data 
available as it has not been updated since the last E.D strategy). Spelthorne is recognised 
via EM3 as the best-connected Borough in the Partnership area. The Partnership seeks 

18  Gross value added is a productivity metric that measures the contribution to an economy, producer, sector or region. Gross value added provides a dollar 
value for the amount of goods and services that have been produced, less the cost of all inputs and raw materials that are directly attributable to that 
production

19 https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/grossvalueaddedgva/datasets/gvaforlocalenterprisepartnerships

6 The Spelthorne Economy

Map 2 Local Economic Partnership

Page 53



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

40

to ‘drive prosperity in the M3 corridor’ and has a common vision for the area to become 
‘The premier location in the country for enterprise and economic growth balanced with 
an excellent environment and quality of life’. Surrey, where Spelthorne is situated, is the 
largest contributor to the national economy outside London.

6.3. In December 2021 the Council completed the third Local Economic Assessment of the 
Borough as part of the background to preparing the 2023 - 2028 strategy. The findings 
confirm Spelthorne’s excellent connectivity as well as other significant strengths in terms 
of the amount of business activity, diversity of business sectors, presence of growth 
sectors and a growing small business sector. It also has a significant retail sector focussed 
on Staines-upon-Thames. 

6.4. This was supported by a survey in 
November 2019 – January 2020 of 
local businesses which gauged current 
business experiences. The survey 
results20 were extremely encouraging 
and showed that 78% of those who 
responded expected to take on more 
staff in the next two years and 80% 
and 0% expected to reduce staff 
numbers. This must be regarded as a 
very positive indication of business confidence within the Borough.

6.5. The assessment and business responses did, however, show a range of current challenges 
in terms of costs, skills, getting / keeping customers, planning, accommodation and 
competition. 

6.6. The following paragraphs outline, under four headings, further details about the key 
findings of the local economy:

•  Locational context

•  Scale and nature of business activity

•  Economic performance

•  Employment and the labour market 

Locational Context
6.7. The Borough is small geographically, being only some 7 miles long by 2.5 miles wide. 

However, it has more business space per hectare than any other Surrey district.

6.8. With over 806,629m2 of warehouse/ retail / office business floor space, 5,365 VAT / 
PAYE registered businesses (an increase of 18% since 2013), a population of 98,500 and 
over 50,000 residents in employment, it is an important integral part of the sub-regional 
economy centred at Heathrow. 

6.9. Spelthorne has excellent connections with the M3 and M25 motorways passing through it 
as well as the A30 trunk road. The M4 motorway is only 5 minutes travel time away.

6.10. The Borough’s connectivity is enhanced by its high level of rail access with six railway 
stations in the Borough. Staines is the fifth busiest passenger station in Surrey. London 
Waterloo is just 32 minutes travel time from Staines and services also go to Reading, 
Windsor and Weybridge. The Shepperton branch-line also provides services to London 
Waterloo via Kingston-upon-Thames. 

20 This is a separate document available in the same web page area as this is located

0% of businesses surveyed 
expect to reduce staff  
over the next 2 years and 
78% expect to take on 
more staff…

Page 54



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

41

6.11. Staines-upon-Thames, the Borough’s principal town centre, is the closest town centre to 
Heathrow – approximately 10 minutes by road to Terminal 5. Staines-upon-Thames is both 
an important business and retail centre serving north Surrey and beyond. 

Scale and nature of business activity
6.12. The large and diverse number of businesses in Spelthorne are spread widely across the 

Borough. 

6.13. The main business space categories are industry and warehousing, offices and retail. The 
amount of floorspace in Spelthorne in these categories amounts to a total of approximately 
820,000 sqm across all sectors as of July 2019. 

6.14. In the areas immediately 
adjoining the Borough there are 
further significant amounts of 
business floor space, placing 
the Borough in an area of very 
high business activity. This 
includes Heathrow Airport, 
Poyle Trading Estate and the 
Causeway, Staines-upon-
Thames which is on the south 
side of the River Thames in 
the Borough of Runnymede. 
Heathrow in particular makes 
a significant and positive 
economic impact on the wider 
area, however, as the pandemic proved, the fact that over 3,500 residents were employed 
at Heathrow pre-pandemic meant that Spelthorne suffered more than other areas not 
connected to the airport as a large percentage of these employees were made redundant. 

Economic Performance
6.15. The biggest employers in the Borough and the wider area are BP at Sunbury, Shepperton 

Studios, DNATA and Heathrow Airport, each of which is in sectors of the national economy 
that are important to the generation of wealth to the country through exports, and critical 
to the local economy for jobs, including the many found within the supply chain. There is 
a particular concentration of transport/storage businesses in the Borough many of which 
have business directly related to activities at Heathrow Airport. Shepperton / Pinewood 
Studios is part of a loose ‘cluster’ of like businesses in the outer/west London area. In 
2019 Netflix took over the studios in order to produce more films in the UK. The Pinewood 
Group are in the process of expanding Shepperton Studios which has seen a £500m 
investment which will double the existing space available. In recent times there has also 
been growth within the construction sector.

6.16. In the 2019 UK Index of 
Competitiveness the Borough was 59th 
out of 379 other local authority areas 
putting it in the top 15% nationally and 
one of the most economically buoyant 
areas of the UK. The recent business 
survey shows that there is a high level 
of confidence with regards to the 
potential for growth in the Borough.

The biggest employers in 
the Borough and wider 
area are BP at Sunbury, 
Shepperton Studios and 
Heathrow Airport...

Page 55



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

42

6.17. In 2021 Spelthorne moved to 42nd place in the index21 

Employment and the labour market
6.18. Spelthorne is located within a relatively urbanised area with 98,900 people living in the 

Borough. 88.5% are economically active, compared with an average of 81.9% in the 
southeast, and 78.9% in Great Britain 22.

6.19. There are over 1.25 million people living in the seven adjoining boroughs of which over 
641,000 are in work. This represents a substantial labour supply for local businesses with 
high levels of short distance commuting in and out of the Borough to adjoining areas. 
Heathrow Airport is a major source of employment with over 76,000 working there23 pre-
pandemic.

6.20. Spelthorne unemployment rate in May 2022 was 3.1% (1,895 people) which is double 
what it was in December 2019. In the southeast the figure is 3.0% and in Great Britain it 
stands at 3.9% 

6.21. Social Mobility 24: The level of skill represented in the Spelthorne workforce is lower 
than many adjoining areas and is reflected in the types of work people do. In turn these 
lower skills and work types are reflected in lower incomes. The business survey revealed 
some evidence of the need for greater skill levels and work readiness of those entering 
the labour market. Overall there is scope to grow both levels of skill and consequently 
disposable income. Ashford North and Stanwell have been highlighted in a recent report as 
the areas in Spelthorne with the most barriers to higher education (East to West report). 
With this in mind more work needs to be done to understand the extent of the problems 
and how we can best improve the situation to make higher education / skills obtainment 
easer to achieve. This work has been identified through the Action Plan.

6.22. The Social Mobility Commission has released its annual State of the Nation report – State 
of the Nation 2017: Social Mobility in Great Britain. The report assesses progress made 
across the country on improving social mobility. It puts a social mobility index at the heart 
of its analysis and ranks all English local authorities into hotspots and cold spots, using a 
range of 16 indicators for every life stage from early years through to working lives e.g., 
early years attainment, Key Stage 2 attainment and the percentage of jobs paid less than 
the living wage. The report finds that there is a stark social mobility geographical divide 
across the country. 

6.23. All Surrey boroughs and districts are ranked amongst the areas with the highest social 
mobility nationally, Spelthorne has ranked lowest compared to all boroughs in Surrey, most 
London Borough (except Having & Barking / Dagenham) and its closest neighbours Slough, 
Hounslow & Hillingdon.

6.24. One of Spelthorne’s challenges is to also ensure it nurtures the right mix of jobs that 
will provide opportunities for entry level employment, while keeping up with the local 
economy. To ensure this is the case, inward investment and business retention policy 
needs to be targeting appropriate sectors as outlined above.

6.25. Spelthorne residents should be equipped with the knowledge to identify and access 
employment opportunities in the borough.

21 http://cforic.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/UKCI-2021.pdf

22 Nomis data for Oct 2018 to Sept 2019.

23 6.9% of the Spelthorne workforce is employed at Heathrow Airport.

24 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/state-of-the-nation-2016

Page 56



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

43

6.26. The number of people with health problems or other physical limitations to work is, 
in absolute terms, quite small but is a little higher than the average for Surrey. This is 
supported by evidence from both the 2011 Census and the Northwest Surrey Clinical 
Commissioning Group. This also impacts on employment levels and disposable income. 

Heathrow
6.27. Heathrow Airport has always been the main provider of employment within the Borough 

with 6.9% of the working population directly employed by the company pre-pandemic, 
and many more through indirect routes. The introduction of a third runway has been set 
aside whilst the airport recovers from the financial impact of Covid-19. It is not certain that 
this will be resurrected. If it does get the go ahead then this is likely to result in 40,000 
additional jobs and a further 5,000+ apprenticeships being created, it also would provide 
additional training and career opportunities for our residents.

6.28. The building of the airport would result in the creation of up to 180,000 jobs and generate 
around £211b of economic benefits 25.

25 Airports Commission

Page 57



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

44

There are substantial strengths in the Spelthorne economy but also some weaknesses which are 
summarised in the previous sections and drawn from the Council’s local Economic Assessment. 
The key issues are summarised in the following table. These weaknesses need attention through 
this strategy to optimise the Borough’s potential for further economic growth.

Strengths/ Opportunities Weaknesses

• Businesses moving out of London may 
see Spelthorne as a nearby attractive 
location to locate, as office rental / 
purchase can be less expensive, yet still 
provide close access to London.

• Construction of the 3rd runway (if 
progressed) will open opportunities for 
infrastructure projects within the borough 
to support the airport, such as hotels, 
offices, warehousing and car parks. This 
will provide job opportunities as well as 
the prospect for local businesses to join 
the supply chain for this massive project.

• Over 1,000 apartments / houses are to be 
built in Staines town centre over the next 
few years, this will help support the local 
retail economy.

• Contracting the supply for goods and 
services to local businesses by the 
Council and support for new start-ups is 
very good and could be even better.

• Need for longer term infrastructure 
improvements, particularly the provision 
of projects that would enhance better 
access to alternative modes of travel. 
Also no direct link from Staines to 
Heathrow despite the close proximity.

• Limited of available warehousing space

• Staines-upon-Thames has a limited night-
time economy and a very restricted offer 
in terms of entertainment opportunities. 
This may impact upon its attraction as 
a destination and inward investment 
opportunities in the town.

• The level of skills and qualifications in the 
Borough are above the Surrey average.

• Travelling into Spelthorne from London is 
difficult when using an Oyster card.

• If London introduces the Ultra-Low 
Emissions Zone it will cause difficulties 
for a number of retailers who are on 
the border with London such as Costco 
in Sunbury. Any vehicles travelling into 
London will also be hit financially.

• Excellent connections by road, rail and air.

• Broadband provision is one of the best 
in Surrey and full fibre connections are 
currently being rolled out in Sunbury.

• Scope to help improve local labour force 
skills. Scope to increase the levels of 
disposable income.

• Proximity to the River Thames, 
opportunity to better promote more 
tourists to the borough.

• Need to consider how best to alleviate 
traffic congestion in Staines-upon-
Thames at peak travelling times. This 
is also a common challenge with most 
successful and popular town centres. 
Although parking provision is good in 
Staines, more needs to be done to 
the less popular locations such as the 
Elmsleigh surface car park and Tott Hill 
which would divert the build up of traffic 
from the Two Rivers car park.

• Limited land for further development 
opportunities as well as additional 
housing.

7 Strengths and Weaknesses

Page 58



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

45

Strengths/ Opportunities Weaknesses

• Spelthorne’s location in an area of 
business success bordering several 
London Boroughs giving easy access to 
significant areas of population.

• Recent projects in the Borough including 
a new Premier Inn Hotel and new 
housing developments in Staines-upon-
Thames signals business confidence in 
the Borough.

• Lack of available housing may impact 
upon economic growth as people are 
unable to locate near to where they work. 
However, SBC plan to develop over 600 
homes in its portfolio over the next 5 
years.

• Scope for greater inward investment 
utilising existing planning permissions, 
proposals and vacant floor space.

• Scope to improve residents’ health, 
fitness and work readiness.

• Growth in permitted development rights 
is resulting in a loss of office space, 
particularly in Staines town centre.

• Lack of Grade A commercial properties

Page 59



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

46

8.1. Progress on each of the ‘actions’ in this strategy will be monitored by the Council’s 
Economic Development Committee. In addition to this it will assess the extent to which 
the economy as a whole is performing. 

8.2. The Economic Development Committee will receive an update on the strategy where 
there has been any significant positive or negative movement on actions contained within 
the plan on a 6 monthly basis and may at any time request an update on any given area 
within the strategy. This will provide the governance to ensure that the objectives will be 
reached over the life of the strategy.

8.3. On a five yearly basis a comprehensive review of the Local Economic Assessment 
will take place and a new 5-year Economic Prosperity Strategy will be developed. The 
following key performance indicators will act as proxy indicators as measures of the 
economic performance within the borough:

a. Business rates annual charge

b. Number of rated properties

c. Unemployment

d. Job density levels

e. Vacancy levels of retail / office premises in town centres

Baselines:

a. Business rates annual charge

Net change - £3,300,012: This reflects the decrease of businesses based in the borough and 
the longest period of the Covid pandemic with restrictions affecting businesses commencing in 
March 2020.

8 Monitoring and Review 

16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22
Annual Charge at start of rating year: £47,087,952 £49,770,626 £51,053,498 £49,868,830 £50,858,942 £47,558,931

 £45,000,000

 £46,000,000

 £47,000,000

 £48,000,000

 £49,000,000

 £50,000,000

 £51,000,000

 £52,000,000

Net change in total business rates (excluding national revaluations):

Page 60



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

47

b. Number of rated properties

Net change from 2020-21 properties: The above figures do not represent all businesses in the 
borough as many small businesses and charity shops are exempt from paying business rates. 
The decrease of 21 businesses in the Borough on the previous year is not necessarily a negative 
sign as this represents figures post-pandemic, so the survival rate is high. It is worth noting that 
there are an additional 48 more non-domestic properties than on the baseline of the previous 
strategy in 2016.

c. Unemployment

Apr-16 Apr-17 Apr-18 Apr-19 Feb-20 Apr-22
Total number of non-domestic

properties: 2436 2466 2486 2487 2505 2484

2400

2420

2440

2460

2480

2500

2520

Net change in total business rated premises:

Oct-17 Oct-18 Oct-19 Oct-20 Oct-21
Spelthorne 0.90% 0.90% 1.50% 5.50% 3.80%
South East 1.20% 1.40% 2.00% 5.10% 3.70%
Great Britain 1.90% 2.20% 2.80% 6.20% 4.70%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

Unemployment

Page 61



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

48

d. Job density levels

The level of jobs per resident aged 16-64. For example, a job density of 1.0 would mean that 
there is one job for every resident aged 16-64.

This indicates that Spelthorne has a lower number of jobs situated in the borough compared to 
the average in the southeast and Great Britain as a whole. However, many of our residents work 
at Heathrow (7% or 3,500 residents pre-Covid-19), so there is very strong demand for labour 
just outside the borough. Unemployment has dropped compared to the previous year leaving 
the number claiming unemployment related benefit at 3.8% compared to the national average of 
4.7% in Great Britain and 3.7% across the southeast. This is still much higher than in 2017 and 
2018 when just 0.9%. 

2017 2018 2019 2020 Total number of
jobs

Spelthorne 0.71 0.76 0.82 0.74 44,000
South East 0.87 0.88 0.90 0.86
Great Britain 0.86 0.86 0.87 0.84

0.00
0.10
0.20
0.30
0.40
0.50
0.60
0.70
0.80
0.90
1.00

Job desity levels

Page 62



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

49

e. Vacancy levels of retail / office premises in town centres
To

ta
l u

n
it

s 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2021
V

ac
an

t 
u

n
it

s %

V
ac

an
t 

u
n

it
s %

V
ac

an
t 

u
n

it
s %

V
ac

an
t 

u
n

it
s %

V
ac

an
t 

u
n

it
s %

V
ac

an
t 

u
n

it
s %

Staines 260 40 15 38 14 30 12 34 13 32 12

Ashford 172 13 8 12 7 12 7 16 9 15 9

Shepperton 92 8 9 12 13 10 11 10 11 13 14

Sunbury 
Cross 45 8 17 6 13 2 4 4 9 3 7

Source: Spelthorne Borough Council Annual Retail Survey - April 2019
Notes: Vacancy rates expressed as a percentage of total units existing in specific year.
The Sunbury Cross figure excludes Tesco Superstore.
% figures are rounded to the nearest integer.
2021 to be surveyed October 2022

The High Street has been hit hard nationally and internationally, particularly due to the exponential 
growth of the internet supporting on-line sales. The latest figures available show that the average 
vacancy rate in England is at 11.1%26. Spelthorne is below this average with just Staines-upon-
Thames above that average with 13% vacancies.

26 http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/SN06186/SN06186.pdf

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2021
Staines 15% 14% 12% 13% 12%
Ashford 8% 7% 7% 9% 9%
Shepperton 9% 13% 11% 11% 14%
Sunbury Cross 17% 13% 4% 9% 7%

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%
18%

Vacancy levels in commercial / retail property

Page 63



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

50

Below is a selection of locations where development was planned to take place as identified 
within the economic strategy.
 
Premier Inn Hotel, Staines-upon-Thames

9 Spelthorne under Development 2017-2022 

February 2017

February 2020

March 2018

Page 64



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

51

London Square, Staines-upon-Thames

March 2018

February 2020

August 2018

Page 65



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

52

Eden Grove Site (formerly Centrica), Staines-upon-Thames

August 2018

September 2022

February 2020

Page 66



Spelthorne Borough Council Economic Prosperity Strategy 2023 - 2028

53

For further information about this strategy and enquiries about development and 
business in Spelthorne please contact the Council’s Economic Development Manager:

Keith McGroary 
Economic Development Manager
Spelthorne Borough Council
Knowle Green
Staines-upon-Thames
TW18 1XB

email: K.McGroary@spelthorne.gov.uk
Tel: 01784 444224

For advice on planning Policy please contact the Council’s Strategic Planning Manager 
Ann Biggs, for Development Management Esme Spinks

Spelthorne Borough Council
Knowle Green
Staines-upon-Thames
TW18 1XB

email:  a.biggs@spelthorne.gov.uk 
e.spinks@spelthorne.gov.uk

Tel:  01784 44 6346 
01784 44 6356

For access to the economic assessment: www.spelthorne.gov.uk/econstrat 

10 Further information

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



@spelthornebc

@spelthornebc

@spelthorneboroughcouncil

www.spelthorne.gov.uk

Town Centres and Parades 
Strategy 2023 - 2024

Spelthorne Borough Council’s

Published: November 2022Page 69



Contents

1 Foreword 3

2 Introduction 3

3 Scope of the Action Plan 4

4 Survey of Businesses 2022 4

5 Ashford  5

6 Shepperton  6

7 Sunbury  7

8 Parades around the Borough 8

9 Town Centres and Parades Action Plan 9-15

Page 70



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

3

Cllr Sinead Mooney

The pandemic over the last two years have been incredibly challenging for 
everyone within our communities. Whilst there have undoubtedly been some 
people within the business community who have seen their business sectors do 
very well, across the board there have been many that have suffered. Spelthorne 
Borough Council has been very active and highly visible in providing a huge 

range of support for businesses, including the administration and distribution of mandated and 
discretionary grants.  

But the long-term effects of the pandemic, coupled with new challenges such as the energy 
crisis and the highest inflation levels for 40 years presents new problems. We now need to 
better understand the current health and confidence of our town centres, and retail parade 
businesses so we can better target support where it is most needed as this will ensure we use 
limited resources and funding effectively.

Whilst the Council cannot control every aspect of our town centres and parades, we can ensure 
that we work collaboratively with our businesses and other stakeholders to sustain and build 
upon the well-being of our communities. I believe this Action Plan will help us to achieve this. 

Cllr. S. Mooney
Councillor Sinead Mooney
Chairman Economic Development Committee

This Town Centre Strategy covers the towns of Ashford, Shepperton, Sunbury and Retail 
Parades throughout the borough. 

In order to sustain the vitality and viability of our town centres, we will work with the business 
community in each town centre to improve the commercial well-being of that town based on the 
following principles:

• Involving and communicating with all stakeholders

•  Promoting the towns as attractive sustainable environments, and by taking and creating 
opportunities to draw attention to local achievements and attractions

•  Working with other Council departments and agencies who provide services within the 
town to provide an efficient and consistent response 

1 Foreword

2 Introduction

Page 71



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

4

Whilst the exact mix of 
businesses and public 
areas in our town centres 
is determined by several 
external stakeholders 
including Surrey County 
Council, landlords and 
businesses, Spelthorne 
Borough Council plays an 
active role in influencing 
several factors that will 
help the well-being of our 
town centre communities. 
This includes working 
to make improvements 
to the public realm, 
accessibility, amenities, 

activities and continued support for, and engagement with, our business community will all help 
to do this. 

As such, this Action Plan is designed to identify small scale active interventions and incremental 
improvements that we can adapt and develop as needed in future years. It also takes account 
of the resources available, as this covers three towns, all shopping parades and will be delivered 
almost solely by the Town Centre Manager, with support from the Economic Development Team 
when required. 

For instance, where appropriate, encouragement will be given to restaurants and cafes to 
embrace an al fresco style approach to eating and drinking by obtaining appropriate consent 
to locate removable tables and chairs on the path adjacent to premises. This will provide 
those businesses with the opportunity for increased income, whilst also providing an outdoor 
environment for those that would prefer it and fostering a ‘café culture’ image in our town 
centres. 

Throughout June and July 2022, a survey was undertaken with the businesses within our town 
centres and retail parades to better understand the current challenges and opportunities faced by 
our business communities. 

The returned survey results, coupled with SWOT analyses and face-to-face consultations, 
have provided the evidence for a series of actions and interventions that will help to sustain 
and improve the commercial well-being of our town centres and parades. Many of the issues 
identified by businesses in the survey were common to all areas, so the Action Plan reflects 
this. Where there are town specific requirements, such as with regards to activities/events, the 
strong feedback was to offer help and add value to the areas that have existing activities and to 
investigate new, where they do not. The survey results also provide a baseline from which we 
will be able to measure the impact the support and interventions outlined in the Action Plan  
have had.

3 Scope of the Action Plan

4 Survey of Businesses 2022

Page 72



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

5

Ashford is situated in the north of Spelthorne and the main shopping/town centre area of 
Ashford, comprises the businesses in Woodthorpe Road, Station Approach, Station Road, 
Church Road, New Parade, Church Parade & Fir Tree Place.

The High Street/Town Centre area of Ashford comprises approx. 162 units/businesses and is 
a busy commercial sector with a good selection of retail stores which are mainly independent 
although there are clusters within the retail sector along the high street including nail bars and 
hairdressers / barbers.

Ashford is a vibrant and busy commuter town with a traditional High Street layout with a 
train station at one end that runs regular service to London. Most of the retailers are small 
independents with a wide variety of shops that serve most everyday needs. There is a wide 
variety of speciality food shops and eateries, coupled with traditional food offerings. 

The main areas of business concern highlighted in the survey were: -

1. Parking – either customer or business

2. Cleanliness/attraction of town centre

3. Promotion of town

4. Support on issues such as energy costs, rates and rent

5 Ashford 

Page 73



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

6

The riverside village of Shepperton is known the world over as the home of Shepperton Studios, 
a major employer in the area.

the main shopping/village centre area of Shepperton comprises the businesses in High Street 
with some ancillary areas such as Araby Corner, Old Chorlton Road, Station Approach and  
Green Lane.

Most of the businesses are retail with a limited number of non-retail businesses spread 
throughout. The town benefits from a petrol station, which also includes a small M&S 
convenience store, on the High Street. 

Shepperton High Street has the look and feel of an old-fashioned ‘village’.  There is a strong 
business community within the village and a strong sense of community and pride in the village 
in general.

The main areas of business concern highlighted in the survey were: -

1. Cleanliness/attraction of town centre

2. Promotion of town/footfall

3. Support on issues such as energy costs, rates and rent

6 Shepperton 

Page 74



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

7

There are two distinct areas of Sunbury, Sunbury Cross and Lower Sunbury.

The Sunbury Cross area comprises approx. 47 units/businesses including a shopping centre, 
which has a few well-known national brands including an M&S Food Hall. 

The opposite side of the main road (The Parade) has a good selection of small independent 
retailers as well as some known brands such as Greggs, Papa Johns & William Hill as well as a 
small number of non-retail businesses. 

Lower Sunbury has the advantage of its position close to the Thames and is home to several 
attractive ‘riverside’ pubs as well as the ‘gem’ of the Walled Garden. Sunbury Park is central to 
the area. It is a very attractive and inviting place and has the feel of a quaint village. 

The retail areas are mainly spread over the 3 roads; The Avenue, Thames Street and Green 
Street, which can make the different areas feel disconnected.  The units are all small / 
independent and there is a good relationship between the retailers especially in The Avenue 
where there is a thriving ‘business community’.

The main areas of business concern highlighted in the survey were: -

1. Cleanliness/safety of retail area

2. Promotion of town/footfall

3. Support on issues such as energy costs and better communication of business support

7 Sunbury  

Page 75



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

8

The process of engaging on a regular basis with the business situated on the smaller parades 
around the borough is in its early stages but is proving to be extremely useful. There are some 
very common issues that a number of ‘straight line’ parades face and, therefore, we can work on 
some immediate actions to help address these. 

For instance, there is a great opportunity for some economies of scale solutions around waste 
and recycling collections for these small collections of businesses. 

The pressures on our Town Centres and Parade businesses are huge; having managed to survive 
the effects of the pandemic, they are now facing significant costs increases related to the impact 
of the energy crisis and the highest inflation for 40 years. In addition to increasing costs, the 
spending of their customers is reducing as cutbacks must be made as the cost-of-living spirals. 
Additional support will be provided through the TCM with regular and consistent engagement 
with businesses; this is where they will also be signposted to support mechanisms and grants 
available to help their businesses through the latest crisis.  

Below is a detailed Action Plan that sets out the key areas of support over the next 12 months 
that have taken cognisance of the survey results from businesses and are designed to help each 
of the towns become stronger and attract additional footfall. 

The governance for this strategy will be through the Economic Development Committee who 
will receive an update in relation to achievements and issues at each of the meetings throughout 
the year, the regular updates are suggested as this is a strategy delivered over just 12 months. 

Given the turbulent nature of the economy, a 6-month review of the plan will take place to 
ensure we are reacting to any new developments.

8 Parades around the Borough  

Page 76



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

9

Ref Action Implementation RAG

A1 Provide a voice for 
the 3 main towns 
outside of Staines 
and bring together 
a thriving business 
community.

Develop a new business forum in each town -Ashford, 
Shepperton and Sunbury; updates are shared through 
newsletter, TCM visits, website, and social media

Make available £1,000 for each forum to help kickstart 
activities.

Timescale: 
a. By spring 2023    

b. By spring 2023 

Measure of Success
a. Minimum of 5 people attend each forum.

b.  Activities are identified and agreed to help promote 
each town

Introduce a Borough 
wide retail forum

Identify guest speaker(s) to present and take Q&A’s. 
Designed to showcase best practice, highlight industry 
trends, national benchmarks and provide networking 
opportunities.

Timescale: 
At least once a year starting 2023

Measures of Success
At least 20 retailers attending – identifying issues and 
potential solutions. A feedback form will be used post 
event and at least 7/10 satisfaction will be achieved

A2 Provide support 
and a voice for 
the shopping 
parades throughout 
Spelthorne

Monthly visit to each parade will take place. Regular 
communication will ensure the full range of council 
services and available support is promoted effectively. 

Explore the introduction of WhatsApp groups for the 
various parades to help improve communications. Use 
of the specific ‘business’ WhatsApp platform will be 
investigated 

Timescale: 
a. January 2023 onwards

b. Commence January 2023

Measure of Success
a.  Concerns of retailers will be identified and worked 

on; information and details of any relevant support 
/ grants available will be circulated. To receive at 
least 1 unsolicited emails/phone calls per month 
requesting advice, support or raising an issue. 

b.  WhatsApp communication system installed at those 
parades that are keen. 

9 Town Centres and Parades Action Plan

Page 77



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

10

Ref Action Implementation RAG

A3 Improve the 
communications 
and access to 
information within 
the town centres

a.  Quarterly town centre newsletter highlighting what 
is going on, actions, activities, best practice and 
potential services for businesses

b.  Deliver monthly Meet the TCM Retail Surgeries 
within each of the 3 towns

Timescale: 
a. January 2023 onwards

b. Immediate effect – monthly

Measures of Success
a. Feedback provided via the new Business Forums

b.  Attendance figures at the surgeries will show 
popularity or not required.

A4 To make our towns 
more accessible and 
inviting to visitors

a.  Engage with local restaurants / café’s pubs to make 
our town centres more accessible by the promotion 
of free use of shops/cafes toilet facilities for non-
customers. We will produce a large logo on door/
window to signal involvement in the new scheme 
and availability to the public. This will be promoted 
via social media and both SBC and SBF websites

Timescale: 
a. January 2023

Measure of Success
a. Minimum of 2 outlets per town being part of scheme 

A5 Help make our 
towns more 
attractive to visitors 
and investment.

a.  Introduce a community clean up with businesses and 
promote the businesses engaged via social media, 
newsletter, bulletin.

Timescale: 
a. From Spring 2023 

Measure of Success
a. Minimum of two clean-ups per year in each town

A6 Promote enhanced 
connectivity 
between retailers, 
councillors and SBC

a.  Councillor walkabout: Introduce a town centre / 
parade walkabouts with local councillors and joint 
visits with other offices from SBC

Timeframe:
a. Commence Spring 2023

Measure of Success
a.  Feedback from councillors and retailers will be 

positive and result in an even better service for our 
retailers.

Page 78



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

11

Ref Action Implementation RAG

A7 Promote the SBC 
waste collection 
service

a.  Collaborate with Spelthorne Direct Services to help 
increase the take up of our waste and recycling 
service by retailers/businesses in town centres and 
parades.

Timescale:
a. January 2023 onwards

Measure of success
a. Identifiable cost savings for all businesses and 

increase the number of new contracts with SDS 
through the TCM by at least 6 per year

Actions: People

Ref Action Implementation RAG

A8 Help businesses 
become more 
cost effective and 
energy efficient and 
promote a greener 
environment within 
the Borough.

a.  Promote energy audits to help businesses focus on 
areas where greatest savings can be made.

b.  Actively promote the Green Initiative Fund and 
LoCASE

c.  Deliver a Greener Business Event Designed to 
showcase all the options and benefits available for 
businesses to be greener, best practice, savings, 
alternative technologies and any grant support 
available. 

Timescale: 
a. January 2023 onwards

b. September 2022 

c. Before June 2023

Measure of Success
a.  Minimum of 15 audits with tangible savings 

identified. After 1 year the amount saved will be 
collated and used to encourage other businesses to 
participate.

b.  Spelthorne will be in the top 4 local authorities in 
Surrey where businesses have applied for funding. 
LoCASE funding ends in March 2023

c.  30 businesses attending – minimum average of 7/10 
feedback

Page 79



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

12

Actions: People

Ref Action Implementation RAG

A9 Increase footfall for 
retailers in town 
centres. 

a.  Explore with retailers, SBC colleagues (especially the 
Neighbourhood Services/Parking team) and Surrey 
County Council the possibility of introducing parking 
meters at shopping parades and towns, where this is 
shown to be needed via consultation, whilst retaining 
“1st hour free” element.

Timescale:
a. Spring 2023

Measure of Success
a.  Implementation of measures to improve parking 

availability that retailers endorse

A10 National store liaison a.  Liaise with national stores to access any local 
discretionary budgets they have as part of their 
corporate social responsibility (CSR) to work with the 
business community 

Timescale:
a. Annually 

Measure of Success
At least 2 businesses a year to contribute towards a 
good cause or town centre activity.

A11 Support businesses 
during the festive 
season

a.  Collaborate with businesses in each town to assist 
with their Christmas promotions. Current energy 
costs may impact on light displays so alternative 
ideas will also be considered. 

b.  Organise themed social media campaigns in the 
run-up to Christmas – “elf on the shelf” - to promote 
town centre offering. 

Timeframe:
a. Annually

b. Beginning November 2022

Measure of Success
a. Feedback from businesses post-Christmas 

b. Feedback from businesses post-Christmas 

A12 Promote national 
campaigns for 
retailers and 
make best use of 
associated publicity 
to support retailers.

a.  To actively encourage and engage retailers with 
national campaigns, such as Small Business 
Saturday. Ensure all “tools” are available to local 
business and arrange complementary activities and 
promotions to coincide. 

Timescale: 
a. Annually 

Measure of Success
a. Feedback from businesses

Page 80



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

13

Actions: People

Ref Action Implementation RAG

A13 Develop better 
communications and 
relationships with 
key parties within 
the retail sector.

a.  Create database of landlords and commercial agents 
responsible for units in town centres and parades 

b.  Working with council colleagues to understand and 
engage with the commercial decision makers and 
property owners in our town centres.

c.  Create a specific ‘welcome pack’ for new businesses 
/ retailers and commercial agents highlighting the 
support new businesses to the borough will receive.

Timescale: 
a. Summer 2023

b. Summer 2023

c. Summer 2023

Measure of Success
New businesses coming to the borough feel 
welcomed, and better engagement with property 
owners and the promotion of Spelthorne services 
will result in a more informed and joined-up business 
community.

Page 81



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

14

Actions: Consolidating and growing current actions
Ref Action Implementation RAG

A14 Raise awareness of 
support available, 
particularly the 
services provided 
via the ARG and 
any other support 
through the Levelling 
Up Fund.

The ARG funding 
is now closed but 
part of the ARG 
funding was used 
to identify these 
areas of business 
support that could 
be delivered over 
a longer period of 
time. 

a.  Promote free professional business advice to 
Spelthorne businesses and residents via the 
business support procured via the Additional 
Restrictions Grant (ARG) for all businesses as well 
as new-start businesses and people thinking of 
starting a business.

b.  Signpost businesses to the availability of 9 training 
sessions on ‘Social Media for Business’ over the 
next 2 years

c.  Identify businesses that would obtain significant 
benefit from having their own website which would 
be free of charge to businesses.

d.  Identify businesses that would benefit most from 
free or discounted 1 year membership to the 
Federation of Small Businesses. This would mainly 
be businesses that are evidencing growth and 
taking on staff.

e.  Provide support for businesses to help reduce costs 
of running a business, especially energy costs.

Timescale:
a. By February 2023

b. By August 2024

c. By April 2023

d. By August 2023

e. By June 2023

Measure of Success
a.  Positive feedback collected over the delivery period 

including possible case studies

b.  Positive feedback after each course with at least an 
average of 7 out of 10 in satisfaction.

c.  Positive feedback as well as evidence from google 
analytics

d.  Feedback from a dip sample of those who 
benefitted from this support.

e.  Positive feedback with physical evidence of savings 
for our businesses.

Page 82



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

15

Actions: Consolidating and growing current actions
Ref Action Implementation RAG

A15 Social media support 
for retail business

The Economic Development Team will provide 1-1 
support and guidance for businesses not confident 
with social media.

Timeframe:
Starting in 2023

Measure of Success
At least 5 retail businesses will be supported, and 
feedback will be at least a score of 7 out of 10.

A16 Delivering ‘what 
works’ and 
identifying new 
methods of support 

a.  Work with stakeholders to help facilitate and add 
value to existing activities and investigate new 
where appropriate.

b.  Ashford Continue to support existing business    
group, Ashford Wide, with their activities.

c.  Lower Sunbury Continue to support existing 
business group with Christmas Fair

d.  Sunbury Cross Build on Christmas tree and lights 
from 2021 – investigate with Shopping Centre to 
have Christmas attraction

e.  Shepperton Launch a regular monthly artisan 
market to showcase the town and attract footfall. 
Investigate holding an irregular ‘brocante’ and / or 
vegan market to attract new clientele.

Timescale:
a. Ongoing

b. Oct/Nov 2022

c. Oct/Nov 2022

d. October 2023

Page 83



Spelthorne Borough Council Town Centres and Parades Strategy 2023 - 2024

16 Page 84



  

 
 

Economic Development Committee  

 

12 January 2023  

 

1. Summary of the report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a written update with regards to the 
utilisation of the Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) as included within the 
Economic Development Forward Plan.  The value of these funds was just 
over £3m and provided to support businesses through the pandemic between 
2020 and 2022. 

1.2 The ARG is a fund allocated by the Government to all local authorities based 
upon its population size in order to provide financial assistance for each 
Boroughs business severely affected by the impact of COVID-19.  The 
government sometimes refers to this as a ‘Discretionary Grant’ as each local 
authority can decide how to allocate the funding based on its local 
understanding of its economy.   

2. Key issues 

2.1 In total the government awarded Spelthorne Council £3,081,799. The funding 
was allocated within a number of windows between March 2020 and March 
2022.  The government had stated in 2020 that no more funds would be 
provided, and these were to last until March 2022.  A strategic decision was 
taken to ensure that funding was still available in January 2022 to cater for 
business support in the event of any further lockdowns was taken. 

Title Additional Restrictions Grant Update 

Purpose of the report To note 

Report Author Tracey Carter, Senior Economic Development Officer 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Exempt No    

Exemption Reason N/A 

Corporate Priority Community 

Recovery 

Environment 

Service delivery 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

Note the report 

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

Not applicable 

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



 
 

2.2 The strategy also proposed that towards the end of 2021 that there should be 
an emphasis on strengthening the business base by making grants available 
via direct business support initiatives rather than just cash grants. 

2.3 Until November 2021 all the grants were made available as cash sums 
transferred to business accounts for those businesses that met the criteria for 
payment i.e. had lost income and / or had fixed overheads.  

2.4 The business support took place after consultations with businesses and 
support and guidance from the Economic Development Committee via an 
ARG Task Group which took the form of a range of direct interventions which 
included the below. 

New equipment to replace old 
inefficient stock or to facilitate a 
new service (90% cost) 

New shopfront Grant (90% cost) 

Professional business coaching to 
Jan 2023 

9 x Social Media Training for 
Business 

30 x free websites for business 

£5k worth of membership to the 
FSB 

Free cost reduction clinics for 
businesses to reduce overheads 

Cash grant for businesses who 
had not received any financial 
support previously 

 

2.5 The last grants were issued in March 2022, this update reflects on the period 
that has passed to November 2022.   

2.6 Below are some of the many unsolicited emails received from Spelthorne 
businesses. 

I've been doubly blessed by Spelthorne, having received both a grant for 
some new audio equipment for my studio and now for the creation of a new 
website. The former has already really helped my voiceover business and 
I'm sure the latter will too, once it's complete.  I've told a number of people 
about the way you've supported me, and how Spelthorne really does have 
a passion for helping small businesses. Everyone's reaction has been much 
the same: 1, they can't believe it and 2, they wish their local borough had 
the same outlook!  I expect that both your roles are probably rather 
thankless at times, so I just want to say... thank you. 

We just wanted to drop you a message to say a massive thank you to you 
and your team for helping us.  Whilst we still face many challenges with 
costs, we have now at least the opportunity to follow our road map to 
becoming a successful business. Our goal to fly the green flag and promote 
healthy living is very much alive which would not have been the case 
without the help of Economic Development Team.  

Page 86



 
 

We started off in Christ Church where we shared the kitchen, the church 
were extremely kind to us but we knew we had to move on and have our 
very own kitchen to grow.  We managed to obtain loans to purchase our 
new kitchen but then hit a financial wall when it came to purchasing 
equipment and at that point the business would have been dead without the 
support of your team. Your whole team were magnificent and always 
incredibly helpful. 

I would love to have a stall at your event and tell people how much help I 
received to get my small business running.  I first started through the 
business enterprise scheme while on income support and have since 
received an equipment grant to buy my mobile massage van.  I started from 
nothing and despite covid am still doing well and growing.  I would love the 
opportunity to give something back to you for all your help and ongoing 
support, of which I am very thankful.  If you would like to see what I do, I 
have nearly 40 5* reviews from the people I have helped in our community. 

 

2.7 The intention from the outset was to strengthen the local business base and 
the success in achieving that has been endorsed via the Federation of Small 
Businesses award to local authorities for business support.   

2.8 Spelthorne made the top 3 in all 4 categories out of 400+ applications.  
Although regional winners for the southeast in 2 categories, winning the All-
England award for Future Ready really confirmed the decisions made by the 
Economic Development Committee in the way we elected to support our 
businesses, now and in the future. 

3. Options analysis and proposal 

3.1 This report does not offer any options as it is a review about the way the 
council allocated the funding made available through the ARG 

4. Financial implications 

4.1 100% of the ARG allocated by the government was allocated. 

5. Risk considerations 

5.1 An internal audit has been carried out in relation to the whole ARG process, 
the findings concluded that ‘Major improvement was required’. Internal audit 
have advised that this finding was based on limited assurance provision of the 
areas reviewed arising from the auditor’s assessment. It is understood that 
the two audit recommendations arising from this review were reported to the 
Audit Committee of 24 November 2022. 

5.2 This was a lengthy report but focuses on 2 key areas. The first raised a 
significant concern with regards to the distribution of the funding other than 
cash payments. They expressed the view that aspects of the above financial 
support could be interpreted as questionable and possibly out of scope of the 
government grant guidance, and a threat that some of the grant money could 
be reclaimed by government.  It was acknowledged within the audit report that 
the Economic Development team regarded the likelihood of occurrence of this 
risk to be low, nonetheless Internal Audit considered it prudent to highlight this 
matter in safeguarding the authority’s interests in the context of the 
appropriate use of public funds, potential risk of fraud and reputation. 

Page 87



 
 

5.3 The E.D Team had been in consultation with the Department for Business, 
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) throughout the process for guidance.  
BEIS were contacted by the E.D Team as a result of the view expressed by 
the Audit Team, and they confirmed in writing that this was indeed the correct 
use of the funds and went on to state that more local authorities should have 
used them in this way. 

5.4 The second related to concerns about the apparent disregard for the 
concerns raised by the Acting Head of Business Rates (AHBR) in respect of a 
number of applications that received the grant.  This did not reflect what 
happened. The AHBR was contacted and wrote a reply to confirm that any 
concerns he had were discussed at length, further enquiries were made and 
that some businesses did not receive a grant, some were reduced, and some 
received the recommended amount and that he was entirely happy with the 
process adopted.  

5.5 In Internal audits view, the objective audit assurance assessment highlighted 
a shortfall in documented evidence and some incomplete records at the time 
of the audit review to support decision making of grants. Their view was that 
as a fundamental internal control process, they were unable to substantiate 
that it was operating effectively beyond the point where the independent 
officer (AHBR) responsible for vetting the validity of grants challenged several 
payments 

 

6. Procurement considerations 

6.1 Not applicable 

7. Legal considerations 

7.1 Not applicable 

8. Other considerations 

8.1 There is an ongoing process of following up with businesses receipts for 
purchases and on occasions viewing the purchases.  This is being done on 
when resources allow as it is not urgent because there is not a deadline.  
Nevertheless, this will not be unduly delayed and aim for the end of March 
2023.  When complete, the process will have come to an end. 

9. Equality and Diversity 

9.1 The impact on equality and diversity issues is considered at every action, 
however, this is an update on action already taken over the last 12 months, 
not new actions. 

10. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

10.1 This is an update on existing actions, reference has been made in the report 
whereby some of the grant money has had a positive effect on the 
environment. 

11. Timetable for implementation 

11.1 Already implemented and delivered.  The last task will be the collection of 
invoices for purchases which will be completed in this financial year. 

12. Contact 

12.1 Tracey Carter t.carter@spelthorne.gov.uk . 

Page 88

mailto:t.carter@spelthorne.gov.uk


 
 

 
Background papers: There are none. 
 
Appendices: ‘A’ Background Information. 
 
 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix ‘A’ 
 
Below are the responses made in relation to the concerns raised by Audit. 
 
Reply from the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
(15/11/22) 
 
‘I can confirm from reading your email that the description of direct business 
grants awarded under the ARG scheme indicates that the grant awards were 
in line with the BEIS ARG Guidance – there was no stipulated restrictions on 
how the funds should be spent by the business once awarded, and a 
business utilising the grant to purchase capital equipment or to replace 
existing outdated equipment is fully eligible.  Similarly, a grant award for wider 

business support to deliver training events or to provide subsidised / free 
membership to an appropriate network (such as the FSB) is in line with the 
ARG Scheme Guidance. 
 
From your questions you sounded like a LA that was utilising the funds to 
really meet local need, finding out what worked and targeting support – some 
other LAs had a much more relaxed scattergun approach, which although 
probably eligible was not how government had hoped the funds would be 
spent. That said with all the pressure on resources in LAs I can totally get why 
some Councils simply followed the scattergun approach and crossed their 
fingers. 
 
Reply from the then Deputy Group Head Customer services (25/11/2022) 
 
I believe that we did what was possible as a group following the application 
process and that I did diligence tests against their accounts and the history of 
business rate grants given prior to any award of ARG. All the cases were 
discussed some more than others and as result of those discussions awards 
were refused or amended. I was looking financially, and economic 
development was looking at the business and working with 
individuals/companies and I believe we got the right balance. Some decisions 
I did not fully agree with and some ED did not fully agree with but the cases 
were debated at length and democratic decisions were made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



Some photographs showing equipment purchased and improved shop fronts 
 
Before 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 92



After 

 
 
 
New display cabinet, more efficient and less energy 

 
 

Page 93



        New chiller, - energy efficient and attractive 

 
 
         New shop front 

 

Page 94



  

 
 

Economic Development Committee  

 

12 January 2023 

 

1. Summary of the report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update with regards to the delivery 
of the Spelthorne Youth Hub.  

2. Key issues 

2.1 The Youth Hub is a location for 16 - 24-year-old people to receive help and 
support regarding their ability to obtain a job as well as provide support to 
develop skills and confidence.  This initiative was created as part of the 
Governments response to the negative effect of COVID-19 on employment.  
A funding opportunity was made available via the Department of Works and 
Pensions (DWP) on a national basis for local authorities to bid for to create a 
local Youth Hub in 2021. 

2.2 In June 2021 the contract was issued to SBC by the DWP and delivery of the 
project was awarded for a 12 month period ending in December 2022. This 
project is for the whole Borough, but because it was felt that a number of 
candidates attending the Hub would be A2 Dominion tenants they were a key 
partner in the initial delivery of the facility. 

Title Youth Hub  

Purpose of the report To provide an update regarding the Youth Hub 

Report Author Tracey Carter:  Senior Economic Development Officer 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards  

Exempt N/A 

Exemption Reason  N/A 

Corporate Priority Recovery 

Environment 

Service delivery 

Community 

 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

 

Note the report  

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

Not applicable 

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

2.3 We have worked with several other partners and stakeholders to ensure that 
we are collaborating with other organisations who also work with young 
people such as; Brooklands College, Fedcap, Surrey Choices, I Choose 
Local, Staines BID, BUPA, Heathrow Academy, McDonalds, Transfer to 
Transform, Association Learning Providers Surrey, Apprentiva, Thomas 
Knyvet School, Staines Rotary, Ashford Youth & Community, Voluntary Action 
North Surrey. 

 
To date the service delivery has exceeded the targets set by DWP. Here is a 
table with targets as set out in the original application. 

 
 

 
 
Here is a table showing the outcomes to the end of November 2022 as 
reported on the DWP returns.  
 

DWP Report  

Referrals to programme 

Year to date (cumulative) 

Referrals to programme (DWP) 77 

Referrals to programme (External) 197 

Starts on programme (DWP) 69 

Starts on programme (External) 185 

Job outcomes (non Kickstart) 75 

Job outcomes (Kickstart) 2 

Apprenticeships/Traineeships 11 

Work experience/Work placements 18 

Social inclusion steps ( att at courses) 54 

Education starts 20 

 Target  Outcomes by 
Nov 22 

Number of young people supported: 189 254 

Number of young people into work or 
apprenticeships:  

50 88 

Number of young people into training:  25 54 

Number of young people into 
education:  

25 20 

Number of young people getting work 
experience:  

25 29 

Number of traineeships:  4 11 

Wellbeing workshops completed:  60 (places) 10 courses (100 
places) 

live opportunities for young people at 
any one time published on the hub 

25 100+ 

Page 96



 

 
 

Courses run 10 

 
 
 
Although the target figures are reported differently on the DWP returns to the 
original figures set out in our application, you can see that that the vast 
majority of our customers came into the hub without being referred by DWP. 
Most of them were via people walking past and through word of mouth.  
 

2.4 We originally started delivering the project from the Business Hub in Sunbury 
with DWP officers meeting clients on site and referring to the Youth Hub. 
Although this process is still in place it has been a challenge to get job 
seekers to attend the Business Hub as the location is harder to reach by foot. 
As the Business Hub has filled up it is also harder to have sensitive 
conversations with vulnerable young people in this environment.  
 

2.5 The current location in the Old Decathlon store has proven to be far more 
popular and accessible for young people and job coaches. We have seen an 
increase in footfall and have captured passing interest from many members of 
the public who have in turn promoted the service to friends and family. The 
location next to the bus depot at the Elmsleigh centre is an ideal location to 
catch our target audience. Many young people who are NEET (not in 
education or training) are not claiming benefit and living at home with their 
parents. We would not have been able to reach these customers without 
having such a visible town centre location as they are unknown to the 
services.  
 

2.6 We have also utilised the space available in the hub to deliver a range of other 
activities such as several Skills & Jobs Fairs (see Appendix A for more 
information). Other community uses such as the “Grab a Jab” service operate 
from the hub a couple of times a week, and the multi-purpose space is being 
used for training and meetings by organisations such as DWP and Staines 
BID. This also drives footfall and promotes our presence to residents and 
businesses. We are planning to hold a Skills and Jobs event in the Spring of 
2023 to bring together stakeholders and partners to discuss issues residents 
are facing, the hub and future programmes that we can run to ensure we are 
delivering a service that compliments current provision and not duplicate. 

 
2.7 The current site will be available for at least the next 12 months, so the 

service will continue to be delivered there unless there is interest in renting 
the location from another organisation. 

2.8 There has been a tentative offer of a space in the new library once that is 
open however this does leave a problem of finding a new location to operate 
while the library is being refurbished. This however has not been agreed yet 
and discussions will continue with Assets Team to assess the situation and 
forward plan. 

2.9 The new Jobs and Skills Hub will launch in January with two work coaches 
and then once the shared prosperity funds have been confirmed an additional 
two work coaches will be employed and will run until March 2025. 

   

Page 97



 

 
 

3. Options analysis and proposal 

3.1 No options given as this report is only for noting. 

4. Financial implications 

4.1 The Youth Hub was funded by a grant from DWP of £118k from October 2021 
to December 2022. Due to a budget underspend on staffing as a result of 
resourcing issues, in October DWP agreed that Spelthorne could continue to 
use the surplus funds (£10k) to provide continuity of service and apply for 
year 2 grant funding. Our bid was successful (confirmed on 21 November) 
with an additional sum of £68k awarded from January 2023 to January 
2024.This is for the recruitment of 2 x Work Coaches only. There are no funds 
available for running costs of the project.  

4.2 The process of ensuring we have the right resources in place commenced in 
November 2022 with an aim of ensuring we have cover and capacity to 
deliver the new service in January / February 2023. 

Additional funding has been sought from the Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF) to 
cover a wider “Jobs and Skills Hub” service which is made up of Jobs & Skills 
Hub provision of £226k and Bounceback Street (for people aged 45+) £127k. 
Although SPF funding has not yet been released, it is expected to be 
approved in December 2022 but will not be paid until April 2024. In the interim 
the Hub will be funded from the business rates retention pot as per the report 
which was agreed by Corporate Policy and Resources Committee on 10 
October 2022 (which will be replenished when the SPF funding becomes 
available). The monies will enable the Hub to continue to operate until March 
2025.  

5. Risk considerations 

5.1 There is a risk that we will not be able to employ suitably skilled work coaches 
quickly enough to start when the A2D contract ends which will result in a gap 
in the provision of service.  

5.2 When the facility was originally set up, there were issues around securing the 
right level and number of staff resources. This impinged upon our ability to 
deliver a fully effective service at the outset. In order to mitigate this risk 
moving forwards, it has been decided to deliver the future service inhouse 
and recruit the staff directly to ensure control over the quality of service.  

6. Procurement considerations 

6.1 The Procurement team were consulted when the contract was awarded. 

7. Legal considerations 

7.1 The Legal team were consulted when the contract was awarded. 

8  Other considerations 

8.1      The objective is to increase the local capacity to deliver employment and well-
being for NEET (Not in Employment or Education) and young people at risk of 
becoming NEET, online and off-line.  A report has already been submitted 
previously with detailed information via MAT where support was approved.  
Support has been provided by the legal team to ensure that the procurement 
and delivery are carried out correctly.  

9 Equality and Diversity 

Page 98



 

 
 

9.1   Information about the Youth Hub has been circulated to the ‘hard to reach’ 
communities. The overarching aim of the Youth Hub is to provide support to 
all residents with a particular focus on vulnerable and hard to reach groups 
such as refugees, single parents and disabled people.  

10 Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

10.1 We have repurposed and re used old furniture within the building and recycle 
wherever possible. 

11 Timetable for implementation 

11.1 Nov 2022 – putting resource in place to deliver 2 Work Coach positions  
Dec 2022 - A2 Dominion Contract ends 
Dec 2022 - Shared Prosperity Fund decision made by central government  
Jan 2023 – Jobs & Skills Hub launches  
Jan 2023 – DWP funding starts 
Feb 2023 – Start recruitment process for 2 x Work Coaches (subject to SPF 
agreed) 
 

12 Contact 

12.1 Tracey Carter – t.carter@spelthorne.gov.uk 

 
Background papers: DWP monitoring report Oct 2022 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – examples of events run from the Youth Hub and a summary document 
outlining Build Environment activities. 
  

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



BUSINESS AWARDS 2022
SPELTHORNE

The deadline for entries is 2 October 2022.
For enquiries, email e.development@spelthorne.gov.uk
To find out more and to enter, visit www.spelthorne.gov.uk/SBA

Entries are now open for the Spelthorne Business Awards 2022. 
Recognising the hard work and achievements of local businesses,  

this event will showcase the ‘best of the best’ with awards for the 
following categories:

• Exporter of the Year
sponsored by Heathrow

•  Creative / Innovative  
Business of the Year
sponsored by A2Dominion 

•  Construction and Property 
Business of the Year
sponsored by Berkley Homes 

• Healthy Business Award
sponsored by Everyone Active 

• Franchise of the Year
sponsored by McDonalds 

• Small Business of the Year
sponsored by Federation of Small 
Business 

•  Sustainable Business of  
the Year
sponsored by Sustainable2

•  Corporate Social  
Responsibility Award
sponsored by Worldwide Energy Logistics 

• New Start Up of the Year
sponsored by CoTribe

• Best Business in Spelthorne
sponsored by Spelthorne Borough Council

•  Best Business in the Staines BID area
sponsored by Staines Business  
Improvement District

•  Best Business in Staines  
and Laleham
sponsored by Enterprise Holdings

•  Best Business in Ashford  
and Stanwell
sponsored by Powerhouse

•  Best Business in Sunbury  
and Halliford
sponsored by Hazelwood / London Irish

•  Best Business in Shepperton  
and Charlton
sponsored by Shepperton Studios

Page 101



Spelthorne Business
Initiatives and Support 2022
Spelthorne Borough Council’s Economic Development team is passionate about supporting 
the Borough’s business community. We have a number of business support initiatives 
running as well as offering regular networking opportunities and training. We are keen to 
work with you to ensure that together, we make the most of every opportunity to improve 
Spelthorne’s economic well-being.

Spelthorne Business Forum 
Want to be kept informed of the latest issues and support available? 
Want your voice to be heard? Want to promote your company in a 
dedicated local business directory? Want to know what training and advice is available? 
Want to join a network of over 900 local businesses?  
Then sign up to the free Spelthorne Business Forum. Visit www.sbf.biz/join-sbf

Free Business Coaching
This service is designed to help businesses plan ahead, overcome issues and develop 
a growth strategy for 2022 and beyond. This is suitable for all small businesses, from 
someone who is thinking of starting a business to more established businesses, and 
offers support in the following areas: • business planning • marketing strategy  
• sales and lead generation • budgeting and forecasting • cost control and profitability  
• organisational structure • governance • management and leadership  
• exit strategy and planning • financing and funding

Spelthorne Business Hub
The first ever business incubator in Spelthorne opened its doors in July 2021 
to provides a coworking environment for start-up businesses. The Spelthorne 
Business Hub brings businesses together under one roof to provide a 
vibrant and supportive environment to turn an innovative spark into a strong 
commercial enterprise. Located in The Summit Centre on the A316 opposite Costco, 
this facility offers flexible office space, hot desks, permanent desks and serviced office 
facilities for both new and existing businesses. A support programme providing training 
workshops, seminars and events will be available for the Business Hub tenants and wider 
business community. For more details email e.development@spelthorne.gov.uk

How to keep informed
If you are a business based in Spelthorne and would like to take advantage of these or 
any of the other services we offer, please email the Economic Development team on 
e.development@spelthorne.gov.uk so we can keep you up to date with the latest 
support and services available from Spelthorne Borough Council. In your email, please 
include: Your name, your business name and type of business, your business address, 
your contact number and email.

Page 102



Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



Skills and opportunities for ages 16-24
Spelthorne Youth Hub

Working with local business partners, Spelthorne Council launched the Youth 
Hub in December 2021, aimed at supporting young people aged 16 - 24 to 
access work, training and education.

The Youth Hub was created to raise young people’s confidence, aspirations 
and employability. 

All you need to plan your future 
The Youth Hub works as a partnership between Spelthorne Council, the 
Department of Work and Pensions, A2 Dominion Housing, Brooklands 
College and local businesses to ensure young people get the best possible 
support by offering:

•  one-to-one coaching from experienced staff
• support from business mentors
•  opportunities for work experience and work tasters
• volunteer opportunities
• CV writing
•  support to raise confidence and self-belief
• employment matching services
• exploring career opportunities
• funding for training

For more information, visit our website www.spelthorneyouthhub.com, email us at 
info@spelthorneyouth.com or phone 07770 481773   @SpelthorneYouthHub

Page 107



I Choose Local 
I choose Local is described as ‘the Instagram for jobs’ with instant phone 
notifications when job vacancies or apprenticeships become available. It offers a 
user-friendly solution to job searching which matches the way young people use 
technology.

Sign in via the Youth Hub or contact hello@ichooselocal.co.uk  
for more information.

 How businesses can get involved
•  commit to advertise vacancies at no cost through the I Choose Local app - 

matching local people with the right skills for their needs

•  take on a work experience placement, providing young people with experience 
of the workplace, while also casting an eye over potential future recruits!

•  become a business mentor, supporting a young person to take their first steps 
into employment

www.ichooselocal.co.uk

Page 108



 

Spelthorne Borough Council Application  
 
The impact of Covid-19 on the wellbeing and employment opportunities 
for young people in Spelthorne was devastating. The trauma and anxiety 
faced by young people during lockdown, coupled with exam disarray, 
restrictions on social interactions and rising unemployment, which is 
significantly higher for young people, highlighted both social and 
economic inequalities.  
Spelthorne areas of Stanwell and Ashford North have been identified as 
having the most deprivation than any other borough in Surrey and the 
announcement of in the region of 6000 Heathrow related job losses in the borough impacted these 
towns disproportionately more than any other in Surrey as Heathrow are the main employers 
across these towns. This made  an already difficult situation even worse and so we developed a 
targeted and comprehensive package of support to address the needs of the young people living 
here.  
 

The effect on young people from Spelthorne (figures taken during the covid lockdown)  

1. 18-24-year-olds in receipt of Universal Credit in Spelthorne had risen from 288 in March 
2020 to 993 in August 2021, an increase of 245%. 

2. Youth unemployment stands at 10%  
3. Rent arrears for 18-24-year-olds are up 20% (A2Domion) 
4. Over 40,18-24-year-olds are reporting mental health and anxiety to the main housing 

provider, A2Dominion  
5. The local retail and hospitality sector, which traditionally employs young people, has 

retracted by 60% in some areas  
6. Heathrow, the largest local employer and related supply chain has indicated potentially 

6,000 job losses  
 
Unemployment figures from February 2020 to October 2020 highlighted the fact that Spelthorne 
had a far greater percentage increase of job losses (almost 4 times the national average) 
compared to the other 3 areas, and further highlights the impact of having nearly 8% of our 
working population reliant on direct employment at Heathrow 

 Spelthorne from 1.7% to 5.6% (412% increase) 

 Surrey moved from 1.2% to 4.0% (233% increase) 

 South East from 2.1% to 5.2% (148% increase) 

 GB from 3.0% to 6.3% (110%) 
 
Our Youth Hub project looked at the effect on professionals and partners supporting young people 
in Spelthorne and the challenges we faced. 
 

1. Skill shortage. How do we help young people re-skill and retrain as certain sectors retract?  
2. Limited resources and capacity to coordinate.  How do we bring together in one place 

the range of opportunities, i.e. apprenticeships, Kick Start, mentoring, work experience, 
entry-level jobs and mentoring provided by local businesses and partners, accessible for 
young people and parents? 

3. Ability to maximise new opportunities How do we specifically provide training and 
employment opportunities in growth sectors such as Construction, health, social care and 
digital when Spelthorne (specifically Stanwell ,Ashford North and parts of Sunbury) has a 
traditionally low-skilled and low-paid resident population and higher deprivation in 
comparison to the rest of Surrey? 

4. The need to re-calibrate the current system and adapt our systems to respond to new 
challenges 

 

Page 109



In response to the pandemic, Spelthorne Borough Council applied to the DWP for grant funding to 
create a youth hub  on behalf of its partnership of local businesses, colleges and youth 
organisations for funding to deliver SBYH a new Youth Hub for Spelthorne which will deliver face 
to face and virtual services depending on the current corona virus legislation and local need. The 
project has two key partnership objectives.  
 

1. Increase the local capacity to deliver employment and wellbeing support for NEET and 
young people at risk of NEET, online and offline  

2. Increase the accessibility to job, training and employment support opportunities for young 
people through the establishment and maintenance of a virtual youth hub with all the local 
employment and skills opportunities in one place. 

 
Managed by the borough and launched February 2021 SYH (Spelthorne Youth Hub) employed a 
team with a background in working with young people. The focus of this work is targeted at young 
people aged 16-24 on any working age benefit but not currently on DWP-contracted provision 
such as WHP, NEA or IPES. Within this cohort we have an open door policy however we prioritise 
support for:  

1) Young people who are single parents  
2) Young people facing housing or SEND needs  
3) Young people with additional needs such as communication/listening  
4) Young people from the Stanwell, Ashford North and Sunbury priority areas.  
5)  Young people who are level 1 learners   
6) Care Leavers / looked after children 
7) Young Carers 

 
The Youth Hub is located within the main shopping centre in Staines Upon Thames next to the 
bus depot as well as targeted projects delivered across the borough including at Ashford Youth 
Centre and Brooklands College and Spelthorne Business Hub.  
Over the 12 months period of this funding we committed to support 189 young people into 
employment, training or education.  
 
The package of support is tailored to each person's needs and is set out in a mutually agreed 
individual action plan (IAP), focusing on helping the beneficiary access employment, training or 
education. 

 
The five broad categories of support offered include: - 

1. Universal access and partner referral to the virtual hub, enquiries triaged by the project 
team.  

2. For those with limited need, brief interventions, including up to four employment support 
sessions delivered by the Work and Learning Coordinator, Brief Interventions 
Specialists and working in partnerships with local employers. 

3. For those with greater barriers to progression, ongoing 121 employment support up to 12 
weeks, including wellbeing assessment and support/signposting on issues such as housing, 
childcare, money management Work and Learning Coordinator, Complex Needs 
Specialist) 

4. Academic Support providing Numeracy, Literacy and IT support 
5. Life skills and wellbeing support. This will include 12- 2 hour group sessions focusing on 

Resilience, Creative Thinking, Mind, Body and Wellness. 
6.  

Themes  Outcomes  

Resilience   Beneficiaries recognise the significance of personal resilience and 
having a positive view of work and life 

 Adjust their approach to become more optimistic; subdue negative 
thinking to help ensure personal success 

 Apply tools to successfully build their personal motivation and 
resilience 

Page 110



Creative 
Thinking  

 Beneficiaries can apply problem-solving steps and tools 
 Utilise those situations where they are at their most creative 
 Identify and overcome barriers to creativity and unlock their creative 

potential 

Mind, Body 
and Wellness  

 Beneficiaries can utilise straightforward techniques for improving their 
mental and physical wellbeing 

 Adjust their approach and think logically and positively about issues 
 Centring on wellness is advantageous for both the individual, friends 

and family  

 
By the end of the first 12 months of the project (November 2022) we have committed to achieve 
the following minimum outcomes for young people: -  
 

1. Number of young people supported: 189 
2. Number of young people into work or apprenticeships: 50  
3. Number of young people into training: 25  
4. Number of young people into education: 25  
5. Number of young people getting work experience: 25  
6. Number of traineeships: 4 
7. Wellbeing workshops completed: 60 
8. 25 live opportunities for young people at any one time published on the hub 
9. 80-100 new work experience, Kickstart or virtual work placement opportunities by the end 

of the project 
 

 We also create opportunities for work experience and volunteering / enhancement 
 

The project is now in month 11 and we have had a fantastic response to the hub. 
We have held several Skills & Careers Fairs over the summer holiday period to help young people 
to decide on next steps in their education and career paths . 
 
Built Environment Targeted Activity 
 
We have partnered with Berkeley Homes who are one of the main developers within the borough 
responsible for a major new housing development within Staines Upon Thames. 
 
Berkeley Homes have worked with the Youth hub to help young people to understand careers 
within the construction industry and the routes to employment. 
 
Activities this summer have included. 
 

 Stands at several Skills & Careers Fairs showcasing careers / apprenticeships within the 
Construction industry. 

 Visiting Ashford Youth Club to deliver targeted information evening for young people 
looking for career guidance within construction & Property sector 

 Targeted messaging and activities to encourage more girls into the industry with female 
experts attending to discuss careers with girls. 

  Dedicated Construction & Property employment day with several industry contractors 
setting up equipment for an interactive day. 

 Apprenticeship Levy gifting scheme to take spare Levy from large corporate employers and 
gift to small businesses within the Construction & Property sector to encourage more take 
up of apprenticeship jobs within the SME businesses who may not otherwise be able to 
afford an apprentice and support young people from deprived families into careers which 
allow them to earn while studying. 

 

 

Page 111



This work is planned to continue throughout 2023 with the plans to expand the education and skills 
workshops to the older age residents who have been made redundant and are looking to retrain 
into new careers within construction. 
 

     
 

 

  

Page 112



Net Expenditure Budget 2023/24 by committee
23 December 2022

Restated Proposed Change from 

Committee 2022/23 2023/24 2022/23

£000s £000s £000s

Economic Development 288.0 298.1 10.1

Staines Market (125.9) (126.5) (0.6) 

Staines Town Centre Management (311.3) (342.3) (31.0) 

Economic Development Committee (149.2) (170.7) (21.5) 

Page 113

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



23/12/2022 Budget Report for 23/24 & 22/23

Economic Development

12513Staines Upon Thames Reg 22/2323/24

4301  0.00Internal printing

4516  0.00Mobile phones

 0.00  0.00

20401Staines Market 22/2323/24

2216  8,500.00Hard Surfaces  8,500.00 12

2301  3,500.00Electricity  3,500.00 12

2404  28,200.00Business Rates  28,800.00 12

2412  1,100.00Bid Levy  1,100.00 12

5012  90,000.00External Contracts  90,000.00 12

7501 -257,800.00Rents -257,800.00 12

-126,500.00 -125,900.00-125,900.00

21301Economic Development 22/2323/24

1001  179,100.00Salaries  171,300.00 12

1003  1,000.00Committee Attendance  1,000.00 12

1101  20,500.00National Insurance  21,200.00 12

1111  31,000.00Superannuation  29,700.00 12

1209  200.00Fire Wardens Allowance  200.00 12

1803  600.00Employee related insurance  600.00 12

3902  5,000.00Essential User Car Allowance  5,000.00 12

3905  1,000.00Car Mileage Allowance  1,000.00 12

4004  0.00Operational equip mats & suppl  0.00 12

4301  500.00Internal printing  500.00 12

Page 115



23/12/2022 Budget Report for 23/24 & 22/23

4401  0.00Consultants fees  0.00 12

4516  500.00Mobile phones  500.00 12

4914  6,000.00Inward Investment  6,000.00 12

4915  7,000.00Key Account Mgmt  7,000.00 12

4949  20,000.00Stimulate Economic Activity  20,000.00 12

4979  20,700.00Other Miscellaneous Expenses  19,000.00 12

 293,100.00  283,000.00 283,000.00

21303Staines BID 22/2323/24

4979  5,000.00Other Miscellaneous Expenses  5,000.00 12

 5,000.00  5,000.00 5,000.00

21304Business Incubator 22/2323/24

2109  5,000.00Building Works  0.00 12

2403  34,400.00Management fees  0.00 12

2404  4,000.00Business Rates  0.00 12

2501  3,000.00F&F Purchases  0.00 12

2601  500.00Cleaning materials  0.00 12

2602  400.00Window cleaning  0.00 12

2603  1,200.00Trade waste collection  0.00 12

2606  4,000.00Cleaning General  0.00 12

2701  40,900.00Service Charge

4031  1,000.00Office Furniture Purchase

4306  500.00Printing Art work and Design  0.00 12

4401  1,000.00Consultants fees  0.00 12

4551  500.00Computer Hardware  0.00 12

4564  8,100.00Networking  0.00 12Page 116



23/12/2022 Budget Report for 23/24 & 22/23

4905  500.00Marketing  0.00 12

4979  1,000.00Other Miscellaneous Expenses  0.00 12

7151 -20,000.00Other Reimbursements

7526 -20,000.00Incubator Desk Hire  0.00 12

7527 -66,000.00Incubator Office Rental  0.00 12

 0.00  0.00

31101Staines Elmsleigh Centre 22/2323/24

2403  0.00Management fees  0.00 12

4401  0.00Consultants fees  0.00 12

5903  0.00Depn  0.00 12

7502 -342,300.00Ground Rents -311,300.00 12

-342,300.00 -311,300.00-311,300.00

-170,700.00Grand Total: -149,200.00

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Printed Date:  13/12/2022 Last modified:  13/12/2022

Fees and Charges

2023/24 

Report Description:

A full schedule of the fees and charges for all Council services for the coming year

Economic Development

Staines Market

Markets 2023/24 Charge2022/23 Charge VAT Record

Staines High Street

Ad Hoc Rentals (Price on Application) S  1,425

Casual Pitch  (Friday)  48.00  50.00 S  1,252

Casual Pitch  (Saturday)  54.00  57.00 S  109

Causal Pitch  (Wednesday)  48.00  50.00 S  108

Permanent Pitch  (Friday)  43.00  45.00 S  111

Permanent Pitch  (Saturday)  48.00  50.00 S  110

Permanent Pitch  (Wednesday)  43.00  45.00 S  1,253

Page 1 of 2

P
age 119



Fees and Charges

Printed Date:  13/12/2022 Last modified: 13/12/2022

Page 2 of 2

P
age 120



New Growth 13/12/2022

Revenue Growth bids 13/12/2022

Committe
e 

Details of Growth 
Bid

FTE
FTE Statutory 
/ Discretionary 

/ Funding
Reason for Growth Bid Service Area Amount Funding

Full / 
Part 
Year

Ongoing 
or one 

off

General 
Fund Net 

Cost 
2023/24

General 
Fund Net 

Cost 
2024/25

General Fund 
Net Cost  
2025/26

General Fund 
Net Cost  
2026/27

ED

Economic Development 
Officer and Town centre 
Manager 2.00 Fully Funded

2 Fixed term contracts of Economic Development Officer and Town Centre manager due to end on 
the 31st March 2023 to extend till end of March 2024. These 2 roles are important as part of the team 
to enable the delivery of the actions within strategy to support the businesses of Spelthorne. This has 
become critical after the pandemic  and current energy crisis and high inflation.

Economic 
Development 103,000 103,000  Full  One off 0 0 0 0

P
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Published on 1 January  

Spelthorne Borough Council  
Economic Development Committee Forward Plan 

 
This Forward Plan sets out the decisions which the Service Committees expect to take over the forthcoming months, and identifies those which are Key Decisions. 
 
A Key Decision is a decision to be taken by the Service Committee, which is either likely to result in significant expenditure or savings or to have significant effects on those 
living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the Borough. 
 
Please direct any enquiries about this Plan to Committee Services@spelthorne.gov.uk.

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 11



 

Published on 1 January  

Spelthorne Borough Council 
 

Service Committees Forward Plan and Key Decisions for 1 January 2023 to 26 May 2023 
 

Anticipated earliest (or 
next) date of decision 
and decision maker 

Matter for consideration Key or non-Key Decision Decision to be 
taken in Public or 
Private 

Lead Officer 

Economic Development 
Committee 12 01 2023 
 

23/24 Budget Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Paul Taylor, Chief Accountant 

Economic Development 
Committee 12 01 2023 
 

Feedback on 23/24 Budget 
Setting Process - Economic 
Dev 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Paul Taylor, Chief Accountant 

Economic Development 
Committee 15 06 2023 
 

6 Month Review Economic 
Prosperity Strategy and Town 
Centres Strategy 
 

Key Decision 
 

Public Tracey Carter, Senior Economic Development 
Officer 
 

Economic Development 
Committee 15 06 2023 
 

Incubator Monitoring 
Incubator Monitoring 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Heather Morgan, Group Head - Regeneration 
and Growth 
 

Economic Development 
Committee 15 06 2023 
 

Q3 Capital Monitoring Report 
(October-December) 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Paul Taylor, Chief Accountant 

Economic Development 
Committee 15 06 2023 
 

Q3 Revenue Monitoring 
Report (October-December) 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Paul Taylor, Chief Accountant 

Economic Development 
Committee 15 06 2023 
 

Review of Staines BID 
Review of Staines BID 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Heather Morgan, Group Head - Regeneration 
and Growth 
 

P
age 124


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Economic Prosperity Strategy / Revised Town Centres and Shopping Parades Strategy
	App A ECONOMIC PROSPERITY STRATEGY (FINAL)
	App B TOWN CENTRES STRATEGY 2023

	7 Additional Restrictions Grant Update
	Appendix A

	8 Youth Hub
	SBA 2022 Catagory Flyer - A5
	Skills and Jobs Fair A5 Flyer
	Spelthorne Skills and Careers Fair A5 Flyer
	SPELTHORNE YOUTH HUB - A5 FLYER
	Spelthorne Borough Council - build environment award application for Spelthorne Youth Hub

	9 23/24 Budget
	2. ED Committee Detailed budget by cost centre 231222
	3. ED Committee Fees and Charges 23-24
	4. ED Committee Growth bids

	11 Forward Plan



